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DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVIEORS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Chair and Members of
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Lyndhurst, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority ("Authority”), & compeonent unit of the State of New
Jersey, as of and for the year ended Dacember 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibitity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
gircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such apinion.  An audit aiso includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

FKF O'CONNDR DAVIES, LLI

293 Eisenhower Parkway, Suite 270, Livingston, NJ 07039 1 Tel 973.535.2880 | Fax: 973.535.5893 | www.pkiod com
EEF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF Internationat ¢ imited setwark of legally independent firms ang does not accept any
responsibilily or Eabitity for tha actions ar inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms



To the Chair and Members of
New .Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Fage 2

We bealieve that the audit avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasis for our audit opinions

Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Cpinion
Governmental Activities Unmodified
Business-Type Activities Qualified
General Fund Uinmodified
Environmental Center Fund Unmodified
Magnet Fund Unmodified
NJSEA Enterprise Fund Qualified

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund Linmodified
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unmodified

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Business-type Activities and NJSEA Enterprise Fund

In March 2015, management elected to close the operations of its 1Z0D Center, a 20,000 seat
entertainment arena located in East Rutherford, New Jersey. This closure is considered a
sighificant and unexpected dsacline in service utility which was not part of the expected normat
life cycle. Under generally accepted accounting principles, this change requires the arena to be
reported at the lower of the carrying value or fair value.

Management has decided not to provide a fair value measurement of the arena at this time.
Tharefore, the amount of an impairment loss, if any, cannot be determined, The financial
impact of an impairment loss, if one was required, would reduce the carrying amount of fixed
assets and net position. Additionally, any impairment loss would reduce the current year's profit
or increase the current yeat's loss.

The carrying value of the arena has been reclassified {o show it has become a non-performing
asset held at year end.

Qualified Opinion on the Business-type Activities and NJSEA Enterprise Fund

in our opinton, except for the effects of the matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type and NJSEA Enterprise Fund of the Authority as of
December 31, 2015, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Chair and Members of
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Fage 3

Unmoedified Opinions

fn our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respactive financial position of the govermnmmaental activities, each major fund other
than the NJSEA Enterprise Fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Authority, as of December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension lability ~ PERS, and the schedule of
Authority's contributions — PERS as presented in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance,

Supplementary information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statemenis that
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements Cost Principles,
and Audit Reguirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statemenis or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 31, 2017 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provigions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance,
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and
campliance.

PRE & Caman, danis, LP

Livingston, New Jersey
March 31, 2017



New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015

introduction to the Annual Report

This annual report consists of four parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A"),
the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and Reguired
Supplementary Information

Management's Discussion and Analysis:

@

This section of the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority's ("Authority" or
“NJSEA"), a component unit of the State of New Jersey, financial statements presents
an overview of the Authority's financial performance for the year ended December 31,
2015, It provides an assessment of how the Authority’s position has improved or
deteriorated and identifies the factors that, in management's view, significantly affected
the Authority's overall financial position. It may contain opinions, assumptions or
conclusions by the Authority's management that should not be considered a replacement
for, and must be read in conjunction with, the other financial statements described
below. :

The Basic Financial Statements include:

The Statements of Net Position, which provide information about the nature and
amounts of resources with present service capacity that the Authority presently controls
(assels), consumption of net position by the Authority that is applicable to a future
reporting period (deferred outflow of resources), present obligations to sacrifice
resources that the Authority has littte or nio discretion to avoid (liabilities), and acquisition
of net position by the Authority that is applicable to a future reporting period (deferred
inflow of resources) with the difference between assets/defined outflow of resources and
liabilittes/deferred inflow of resources being reported as net position.

The Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Position which account for all of the
current year's revenues and expenses measures the Authority's operations over the past
year and can be used to determine how the Authority has funded its costs.

The Statement of Cash Flows, reported for its enterprise funds which provide information
about the Authority’s cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulling
from operations, investing, and financing activities.

The Fiduciary Funds statement provides information about the financial relationships in
which the Authority acts as trustee for the benefit of parties outside of NJSEA's
operations,

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide;

o

information that is essential to understanding the financial statermenis, such as the
Authority's accounting methods and policies.

Details of contractual obligations, future commitments and contingencies of the
Authority.

Any other events or developing situations that could materially affect the Authority's
firancial position.
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December 31, 20156

The Authority's Business

The Authority is engaged in the business of owning and maintaining entertainment, convention
and environmenial facitities throughout the State of New Jersey (the "State™). It was created as
a gquasigovernmental instrument of the State not only for the purpose of generating revenues
from these activities, but also to generate sales tax revenues and provide economic stimulus to
the regions surrounding the facilities. in February 2015, the New Jersey Meadowlands
Commission ("NJMC™) was merged with the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
("NJSEA") by an act of legisiation. The NJMC Board of Commissioners was dissolved and all
assels and responsibilities of the NIMC were transferred to the NJSEA.

Below is a description of the Authority's separate projects:
The Meadowlands Sports Complex - East Rutherford, New Jersey

Meadowfands Racetrack - on December 19, 2011, NJSEA and New Meadowlands Racetrack,
LLC {"NMR") entered into a 30-year lease agreement for full operational control of the
Meadowlands Racetrack, the development of 4 Off-Track Wagering ("OTW") sites and the
transfer of a 35% interest in Account Wagering. The lease has a renewal option for a further 10
year period at its conclusion, On November 23, 2013, NMRE moved its operations {o a newly
constructed grandstand facility opposite the existing grandstand.

Meadowlands Arena (the Arena) - is a 20,000 seat indoor arena with 28 private suites,
containing approximately 466 seats, and 4,000 of its own parking spaces. Its revenues are
generated from leases and license agreements with sporiing events, family shows, and
concerts. As of April 2015 the NJSEA closed the Arena for public events,

American Dream Retail and Entertainment Project (formerly known as the Xanadu Froject) - a
multi-use attraction currently under construction consisting of approximately 2.2 million square
feat of gross leasable space containing entertainment, restaurant and ancillary retail
components. On June 30, 2005, the Authority entered into a ground lease and related project
agreements for development of the Xanadu Project, approximately 104 acres at the
Meadowlands Sporis Complex.

The Authority received pre-payments of ground rent through 2023 in the amount of
$160,000,000. in 2005, the Authority used $26,800,000 of the prepaid ground rent to purchase
the wetland mitigation bank rights on the Empire Tract. The Authority also used $37,190,000 to
defease tax-exempt bonds attributable to the Xanadu Project site. Expenses associated with
the project that were previously deferred were expensed in 2005, For GAAP purposes revenue
will be realized by amontizing the upfront payment over 18 years.

American Dream’s developer, Amergam, LLC, has announced that the complex will be
anchored by department stores Saks Fifth Avenue and Lord & Taylor. The complex's many
scheduled features include indoor amusement and water parks, a movie theater complex, an
observation wheel, an indoor ski and snowboarding slope, and numerous restaurants, The
developer has estimated a Fall 2018 opening.

Other - Additionally, the Sports Complex generates revenues from events such as putdoor
markets held in the Complex's parking lots. Additionally, income is generated from advertising
signage located at various locations around the Sports Complex.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015

Monmouth Park Racetrack - Oceanport, New Jersey

Monmouth Park Racetrack - consists of a one-mile oval track for thoroughbred racing,
grandstand, and clubhouse seating for 18,000 spectators, 88 luxury open-air boxes and
parking for 14,000 vehicles. Support facilities include 40 barns for 1,550 horses. Its revenues
are generated from commissions on live and simulcast pari-mutuel wagering, parking
admissions, program and concessions sales.

On February 29, 2012, the Authority and the New Jersey Thoroughbred Horsemen Association,
Inc. ("NJTHA"} executed an up to 35-year lease to operate the Monmouth Park Racetrack. The
agreament included a 35% interest in account wagering and the rights to build and operate an
additional five Off-Track Wagering facilities. The NJTHA took full operational control on May 3,
2012,

New Jersey Account Wagering System (dNJBets)

The Authority is the sole licensee of the State's Account Wagering operations which began in
October of 2004 as a joint venture with New Jersey Account Wagering, LLC for the purpose of
implementing an account wagering system in the State. The system aliows account holders to
make wagers through an internet connection or an automated telephone system. In 2012, the
Authority entered into a Swyear management agreement with Darby Development, LLC
{("Darby"), to manage the daily activities of the account wagering operations on the Authority's
behalf. The Authority remains the account wagering licensee and retains a majority position on
the operating board. As part of the racetrack ground leases, the Authority's 70% financial
mterest in Account Wagering was transferred in equal shares to NMR (the Meadowlands
operator) and (0 the NJTHA {the Monmouth Fark operator).

The Greater Wildwoods Convention Center -Wildwood, New Jersey

The Wildwoods Cornvention Center (the "Center") — Is a facility situated on the boardwalk in
Wildwood, New Jersey, consisting of a 72,000 sguare foot exhibition floor and parking for 700
vehicles. Rental of the space for trade shows, concerts, conventions, and meetings comprise
the Center's revenues.

Other -The towns of Wildwood, North Wildwood, and Wildwood Crest impose a tourism tax on
retall sales. A portion of these revenues are provided to the Authority to operate, maintain and
promaote the facilities.
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The {former) Meadowlands Commission - Lyndhurst, New Jersey

in February 2015, the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission ("NJMC") was merged with the
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority ("NJSEA") by an act of legislation. The NJMC
Board of Commissioners was dissolved and all assets and responsibilities of the NJMC were
transferred to the NJSEA. The following operations were assumead by the NJSEA under that act
of legislation:

sSolid Waste & Natural Resources — Solid Waste and Natural Resources covers several aspects
of the NJSEA'S roles, including providing for the proper disposal of solid waste, preserving the
environment and conducting field studies. The Solid Waste division operates the Keegan
Landfill in Kearny, leases a trash-transfer station in North Arlington and a vegetative waste
disposal gifte in Kearny. in addition, 33 floodplain management structures throughout the
Meadowlands District are maintained by the department.

Land Use Management — Land Use Management is organized into two groups. One group is
responsible for establishing and enforcing the zoning and subdivision regulations of the
Meadowlands District. The second group is responsible for enforcing New Jersey's Uniform
Construction Code, Together, they preside over the primary land use reguiations that govern the
30.4 square-mile Meadowlands District. Redevelopment plans and changes to properties are all
reviewad by this department to conform to the Meadowlands Master Plan, its underpinning
regulations, and statewide regulations to ensure orderly development.

Other — The NJSEA conducts critical research to better understand, manage and improve the
Meadowlands District's unigue ecosystem, including its wetlands, through the Meadowlands
Environmental Research Institute (MERID). The NJSEA also provides environmental science
programs to schoaol children through a partnership with the Ramapo College Foundation.

Financial Analysis

The following sections will discuss the Authority's Financial Position for 2015. Additionally, an
examination of major economic factors and indusiry trends that have contributed to the
Authority's operations are provided. It should be noted that for purposes of this MD&A,
summaries of the financial statements and the various exhibits presented include information
from the Authority's financial statements, which are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAPR").

Highlights (2015)

Total program revenues were $65.5M in 2015, Solid Waste accounted for $25.0M of that total
with Sports & Entertainment Facilities contributing another $18.8M. Total operating expenses
(before depreciation and amortization) were $83.3.M for the year: of which $37.1M were
associated wilh management and administrative expenses and $18.0M related to solid waste
operations.
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Financial Summaries
The following tables provide a condensed summary and basic explanation of the changes in
the financial statements described above, which are also presented in full detail in this annual

report,

Condensed Statement of Net Position

December 31,

2015
Current and Ciher Assets ] 41,840,511
invesiment in Facilities 200,177,879
Non-Currant Assets ‘ 23,726,783

355,545,253
Deferred Quiflows of Resources 3,715,963
Current and Other Liabilities 43,264 930
Long-Term Liabilities 111,289,022
Total Liabilities 154 563 002
Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,970,108
Mel Position 5 201,727,159

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

QOperating Revenues $  B5501185
Operaling Expenses Excluding Deprecialion (83,296,283)
Operating Revenues Net of Depreciation and Amortization {17,795 108)
Depraciation and Amortization Expense (15,044, 148)
Operaling Gainf{Loss) {32 B34 256)

Non Qperaling Income and Expenses:

Luxury Tax, Marketing Fee and Tourism Tax 4,052 238
State Subsidy 28,000,000
intarest and Other Income/(Expenses) 9,013,063
Total Non Operating Income 39,065,291
Change in Net Position 3 6,226,035
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(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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While the Statements of MNet Position show the financial position or net position, the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provide answers as to the nature and
source of these changes,

increases in net position consist of:
e QOperating revenues, which are the total revenues, generated at all the facilities.

¢ Marketing fee and tourism tax revenues are funds collected by the State for construction,
development, operation, and promotion of the Wildwoods Convention Center as well as
to repay the debt incurred on these projects.

Decreases in Net Position consist of:

o Operating expenses, which represent the costs associated with running facilities except
for fixed asset acquisitions and capital maintenance costs that are depreciated,

« Depraciation expense which reorganizes the cost of capital assets, such as buildings,
equipment and improvements, over the life of the asset, usually between 2 and 60 years,

« [nierest expense and other, which is the interest paid and accrued on the Authority’s
debt net of interest income generated on cash reserves held in cash and shor-term
investments,

= Other income and expenses, which are not directly related to operations, and often, may
be non-recurring in nature.

Eceonomic Conditions

The Authority has been a leader in the racing industry since opening the Meadowlands
Racetrack in 1976 and purchasing the Monmouth Park Racetrack in 1985, Casino gaming,
jotteries and the emergence of casines in surrounding staies has adversely effected racing
which has operated at a net defict since 2007. in response, NJSEA began the process of
leasing ils racing operations to private operators. The transfer of operational control was
completed in May of 2012,

On July 27, 2011, NJSEA and New Meadowlands Racetrack, LLC ("NMR") entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding for the lease of the Meadowlands Racetrack, the development
and operation of 4 OTW's, and the transfer of a 35% interest in Account Wagering. NJSEA
operated the facility, with direction from NMR, until alt licensing and regulatory changes were in
ptace. On December 20, 2011, a 30-year lease was executed and full operational controt was
transterred fo NMR,

On February 20, 2012, the Authority and the NJTHA executed an up to 35-year lease to operate
the Monmouth Park Racetrack. The agreement included a 35% interest in account wagering
and the right to build and operate an additional five Off Track Wagering facilities. The NJTHA
took full operational control on May 3, 2012,

The new Giant and Jets Stadiurm opened in 2010, and has resulted in revenue losses for the

Authority. Since the new stadium is owned by the Giants and Jets, the Authority will no longer
earn event income. However, the Authority collects land lease income,

10
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Economic Conditions (continued)

On June 20, 2005, the Authority entered into a ground lease and related project agreements for
development of the Xanadu Project, approximately 104 acres at the Meadowlands Sporis
Complex. The Authority received pre-payments of ground rent through 2023 in the amount of
$160,000,000. For GAAP purposes revenue will be realized by amortizing the upfront paymenrt
over 18 years. As of December 31, 2015, the facility is still under construction.

In February 2018, the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission ("NJMC") was merged with the
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority ("NJSEA™) by an act of legislation. The NJMC
Board of Commissioners was dissolved and all assets and responsibilities of the NJMC were
transferred to the NJSEA.

Racing

Racing revenues depend on attendance, number of racing dates, and race signais from other
racetracks throughaout the United States. These factors can generate higher wagering, increase
available purse doltars and improve the quality of races. Over the years, attendance and
wagering has declined annually since the introduction of competing forms of gambling such as
lotteries and casine gambling in surrounding states.

in December of 2011 and May of 2012, NJSEA transferred operationat control of the
Meadowlands and Monmouth Park racetracks to private operators. The transfers included
operational control of the Woodbridge OTW, the righis to build and operate additional OTW
facilities, and NJSEA's 70% interest in account wagering. The transfer effectively ended
NJSEA's participation in the racing industry.

Arena

As of April, 2015, the NJSEA closed the Arena to public events,

The Greater Wildwoods Convention Center

The Wildwoods Convention Center depends heavily on the number and size of events it can
attract, and relies on the performance of the tourism industries with which it can coexist.

11



New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
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Capital Assets

At the end of 2015, the Authority had a net investment in capital assets of $286,701,469 at a
total capital cost of 3670,461,665 net of accumulated deprecigtion of $373,760,196 as shown
helow,

December 31, Transfers December 31,
2014 Additibng and Deletions 2018

Meadowtands Sports Complex $ 479871503 % 2654177 0§ {123,B36) § 482401934
Monmouth Park Racetrack 62,314,429 62,314,429
Wildwoods Convention Center 87,631,506 293823 B7,925329
Lyndhurst 40,275,541 366,777 (69,372) 40,572,046
Transporation Planning Cistrict 5,007,071 1,359,984 7,367,065
Solid Waste 19,850 876 39,240 (19,076) 18,880,040
Total Investment in Facilities 665,960,018 4. 714,001 {212,284} G70,461,733
Less Accumulated Depreciation (366,870,150) {17,037,100) 166,985 {(373,760,265)
Investment in Facilities Net of

Actumulated Dapreciation 3 300088866 F (12343088 3§ {45,299} % 296,701,468

Additions to capital assets during 2015 consisted of normal purchases and improvement of
infrastructure, mechanical systems, as well as vanous safety upgrades,

Budgetary Confrols

The Authority adopts entity-wide operating and capital plans that are approved by its Board of
Commissioners. Budgets are a measure of the Authority's financial performance and
accountability and are reviewed and revised, although not formally, throughout the year.

Subsequent Events

In August and September 2016, the NJSEA authorized the issuance of Limited Obligation Grant
Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 (the "ERGG
Bonds"), in order to provide financing for a portion of the costs of developing the American
Dream Project. The ERGG Bonds are special limited revenue obligations of the Authority
payable from grants received by the Authorty pursuant to a State Economic Redevelopment
and Growth incentive Grant Agreement awarded {o the developer of the American Dream
Project. The ERGG Bonds have not yet been issuad.

In August and September 2016, the NJSEA authorized the issuance of Limited Obligation
PILOT Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $800,000,000 (the
‘PILOT Bonds™), in order to provide financing for a portion of the cosis of developing the
American Dream Praject. The PILOT Bonds are special limited revenue obligations of the
Autharity payable from PILOTs received by the Authority pursuant to a Financial Agreement
between the developer of the American Dream Project, the Borough of East Rutherford and the
Authority. The PILOT Bonds have not yet bean issued,

12
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2015

Subsequent Events (continued}

NJSEA's lease with the Town of Kearny for the Keegan Landfill property expired in June 2016,
Negotiations between the parties for an extension of the iease failed. NJSEA filed an action to
condemn the Keegan Landfill property. The Superior Court of New Jersey affimed the
NJSEA's right to condemn the landfill after a challenge was made by the Town of Kearny. The
Town has subsequently appealed the court's decision. The appeal remains ongoing.
Simultaneously, proceedings to determine the valuation of the landfil relative to the
condemnation remain ongoing. The NJSEA's expert appraisal set a value of $1.8M for the
property. Condemnalion commissioners appointed by the court valued the property at $7.8Min
a non-binding process, which was appealed by the NJSEA. A trial de novo is anticipated {o be
held in 2017 on this subject. As these legal matters proceed, operations at the landfill continue,
The NJSEA received a Temporary Certificate of Authority to Operate (TCAQ) for the tandfill,
which would permit operations up to 100 ft. The Town of Kearny has filed a request for an
adjudicatory hearing on the TCAQ.

Conclusion

This section of the Annual Report has been provided o assist readers in getting a general
overview of the Authority's business, financial position, and fiscal accountability for the funds it
generates and receives. If you should have questions about any information in this report, you

are requested to contact the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority, Finance Department,
1 Dekorte Park Plaza, Lyndhurst, NJ 07071,

ek dededr
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NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXFOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statement of Net Posilion
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Investrments
Accounts Receivables, nat
Other assets
internal balances
Accounts receivable - Mitigation Trusi
Capital asseis.
Non-depreciable
Depraciahle, net
Non Current Assats
Investments
MNotes Receivable
Other
Hestricted assets;
Cash
Investmenis
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources retated to pension

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Cther liabilities

Unearned revenue

Long terrm habitities:
Due within one year
Bue beyond one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension

NET POSITION
Net invested i capital assats
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental Business-ype
Aclivities Activities Total
§ 12,807,408 % 17,568,312 $ 30,476,721
178,104 4 5849 751 4 777 855
531,452 531,452
(1,570.808) 1,570,820 -
108,588 108,568
20,154,401 187,017,193 177,171,504
5,961,948 107,044 436 113,006,384
11,496,129 14,496,129
11,467,840 11,467 240
762,694 762,684
3,544 725 3,544 725
2,201,171 2,201 1714
37,630,963 317,914,280 355,545,253
1,817,285 3,808 678 5715963
566,057 8,402 501 8,968 558
314,480 1,179,782 1,494,241
222 128 222,125
32,580,008 32,580,006
22,000 1,855 000 1,877,000
22 543 447 BB, 778,575 108,322,022
23,668,088 130,895 864 154 563,952
853,878 4,116,427 4,070,105
26,116,348 261,619,122 287 735 471
4,259 229 15,954,739 20,213,968
(15,448,096) {90,773,184) (106,222,280}
$ 14,926 482 $ 186,800,677 $ 201,727,158
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Governmental activities:
Commission operations
Environmental center
MAGNET fund
Other governmental funds

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:

NJSEA

Solid Waste

Total business-lype activities,

Tolal government

Sesa Notes lo Financial Statements

NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Component Unit of the State of New Jersay)

Slatamant of Net Activities
Recember 31, 2015

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Governmental  Business-type
Expanses Charges for Services Activities Activities Total

$ 10,123,691 § 5,188,957 % (4,823734) 5 (4,923,734}
1,148 359 1,034,150 {114,209 £114.208)
38,943 (35,943) {38,943}
200,348 207 078 12,270) (2.270)
11,520,341 6,441,185 (5.079,156) {2,075, 156)
62,094,636 34,051,508 {28.043,129) (28,043,129}
20,725 464 25,008 497 283,028 283,028
86,820,160 58,060,000 (27.760,101) (27.760,101)

5 98340441 % 85,501,188 5 (5.079,158) § {(27.780,101) % (32,839,256)

Genaral rEvenLes:

Investmant earnings 5 7883 % 7 27,883
NJDOT Pilaski Skyway £23,239 623,239
Super Slorm Sandy reimbursament 209,060 208,080
Lease revenue BY7 519 BR7.518
Rental income solar 182,960 182,560
Campasting revenuss 288,608 288,608
Other 600,708 6,183,078 6,783 784
State subsidy 26,000,000 26,000,000
Toursmpax —— 4,082,238 4 052,238
Total gengrat revanues 2819975 36,245,318 39,085 291
Change in Net Fosition (2,258,181) 8,485.216 6,226,035
Net Position - beginning (as restatad) 17,185,663 178,315 461 196 501,124
Net Position - ending % 14,926 482 § 186800677 & 207,727,155
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NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Component Unit of the State of New Jersay)

Batance Sheet
Giovermnmental Funds
December 31, 20115

COther Total
General Environmental MAGNET Governmenta Governmertat
Fund Center Fund Fund Funtls Funds
Assets
Cash % 2862752 5 517,130 2,348,757 3 190,927 5 5,919 566
investrmenis 6,948,202 28,792 10,849 5,987,843
Accounts receivables, net 115,091 1,100 B1,912 178,104
Due from other funds 117,913 86,178 2113 206,206

Total Assats 10,043 838 b 604,410 § 2,379,662 % 263 688 3 13,201,718
Liabitities and Fund Balances
Accounts payable 12 18111 - 506§ 2563 5 L] 566,057
Accrued habilities 298,500 14.835 1,124 314,459
Due to other funds 1.502,105 47 510 227,490 1,777,105

Total Liabllitios 2362, 5494 63,850 2,863 228,614 2,667 621
Fund Balance:

Restricled for:

Open space acquisition 46,000 45,000

Maimerance 1,553,545 60,564 2014308

Additions and replacements 851,001 45670 886,671

nsurance 25,000 25,000

Flood contrel H33,5830 633,630

Super Storm Sandy repairs 142 176 142,178

Other 55,924 6,523 62,447

Renewable energy 439,287 435,287
Curnmitied on:

Project commitmants 1,466,497 1,468,497
Assigned 434 325 910,602 28,550 1,373,477
Unassigned 3,534, 895 3,534,895

Total Fund Batanoes 7,681,366 540,559 2,377,009 26,073 10,634,007

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances % 10,043,950 ] 604 410 § 2379562 5 263,658 3 13,291,718

Amaounts reported for governmental funds in the staternent of net assets are differemt because;

Total Fund Balance g 10,634,097

Capital assets uged in governmentai activities ace not financial resources and therefore are nat reponed 26,116,348

in the funds. The cost of the assets is 540,572 246 and the accumulated depreciation is $14,456,887.

Long-term liabilites, defered inflows and oulflows are nol due and payable in the currant perod and
therefere are not reported as liabifities in the funds.

See Noles to Financial Statements

16

(21,82%,964)

———

$ 14,926,482



NEW JERSEY SFORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
(s Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Belances
Governmental Funds
Deecamber 31, 2015

Tolal
General Envircnmental MAGNET Non-Major Governmental
Fund Lenfer Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revernyas:
Solid waste overhead reimbursement & 3653635 $  1.034.150 % 5 % 4,687.Y86
Composting revenues 28R 608 288,508
Super Slorm Sandy revenua 208,060 208,060
Grant cevenue 7 078 207.078
MJROT Pulaski Skywsy revenue 623,239 623,239
Lease revenue 887,618 887,518
MCT reimbursement for service 150.000 150,000
Eea incoms 1,546,321 1,646,321
Other ihaotna 434,200 16,418 450,708
Renlal incorme- solar 182,960 162,960
Interast Income 25,120 617 2,143 103 27,883
Total Revenue 8,000,752 1,061,085 2143 207,181 9,261,161
Expendituras:
Autharity oparationy 7,054,041 7,054,041
Kearny 1-A access agreemeny 20,000 20,000
Environmenial Center aperations 648,359 648,359
Ramapo College partnership 500,000 500,000
MAGNET expendiiures 38 842 38,942
Super Storm Sangy expeditures 61,786 591,786
Othar Expandiuras 185,908 209,348 395,256
Tolal Expanditures 7,851,738 1,148,359 38,942 209,348 5,748,384
Change in Fund Balances 149,017 (97.274} {36.800) (2.167) 12,777
Fund Batanca, beginning of year (as restated) 7,532,340 637,834 2,413,859 37,240 10.621.322
Fund Batance, end of yeat § 7,681,366 g 54{,560 § 2,377,089 b 38,073 § 10,634,000
Nt changes 1o frd balances - tofal goverprmental funds 5 12777
Ambunts repar for governmental activities in the slaterment of activities are different hecause.
Capital ouliays 366,776
Depreciation axpanse {1,517 486)
Fost employmenl healthcare banefits, ather than pension obligalion {1,124 ,248)

Change in net position of government activities

See Notes to Financial Statementz
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NEW JERSEY SPORT AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY

{a Component Unit of the State of Mew Jersey)

Assels

Current assets:
Cash
Due from State of New Jarzay
Prepaid expenses
e from other fundg
Receivables, naet

Total curreni asseds

Nonourrent Assets:
Motas recaivaabie
Other assels
Investments
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investments
Capitat Assets, net

Total noncurrent agsaets

Deferred Quiflows of Rasources
Deferred outflows of resources related 1o pansion

LiabHities

Current Liabitities;

Accounts payable

Actrued liabilities

interest payabie on bonds and noles
Unearned revenue

Total currant liabititles

Long Term Liabllities:
Bonds and notes payable
Net pension liabitity
Other long term liabilitiez
Compensated absences

Total Long term Lighilities

Deferred inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources retated to pension

Net Position:

Invasted in capital assets, net
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Sea Notes 10 Finangial Stalements

Statemant of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015

NJSEA Solid Wasle Total
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise

Fund Fund Funds
3 9,631,487 kS T.o31 818 5 17,569,312
247 114 247,134
284,341 284 241
1678 487 1,679,487
4,560,830 1,048,921 4,590,751
13, 713,¥78 10,666,223 24,380,002
11,467 940 11,467,940
762,694 762 6594
11,496,129 11,406,129
486,810 3.0567.815 3,544,725
2,201,171 2,201,171
263,761,771 249 858 264,061,629
276,479,315 17,094,973 283,534 288
2.411,809 1,486,869 3,898,878
5,821,653 2,580,848 8,402,501
503,472 503,472
G76,310 676,310
31,207,425 1,372, 581 32,580,006
38,208,860 3,963,420 42,162,288
2,442,505 2,442 505
16,453,848 9,943,966 26,397 814
35,443 337 4,076,808 58,520,145
373111 373,111
74,538 690 14,383, 885 a8 V33,5875
3.417 964 G648 463 4,116,427
261,316,264 299,858 261,619,122
456,916 15,457,829 145,964,738
(35,167.,785) (5,605,350} {80,773,184)
§ 176,638,368 5 10.162,288 3 186,800,677
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NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Decamber 31, 2015
NJSEA Solid Waste Total
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
Operating revenues:
Sports Complex 3 14,903,437 3 5 14,903.437
Convention Center 2,583,343 2,583 343
Entartainment facilities 8,888,888 §,883 838
Solid waste revenues 25,008,482 25,008 462
Expense reimbursement 7,675,840 7,673,840
Total operating revenues 34,051,508 25,008,492 § 39,060 .000
Operating expenses:
Sports Complex 30,180,555 30,160,555
Convention Center 5,038,434 6,038,434
Solid waste landfill operations 13.130,423 13,130,423
Genaral and administrative 5,846,645 5,846 645
PILOT 11,559,058 500,140 12,158,198
Parks and opan space 1,203,764 1,203,764
MERI operations 1,121,316 1,121,316
Depreciation and amortization 14,279,090 398,272 14,677,371
Closure expenses 2,324,905 2,324,905
Total operating expenses 62,037,147 24 725 464 86,762,611
Operating (loss) gain {27,885 638} 263,028 (27.,702,611)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Slate Subsidy 26,000,000 26,000,000
Tourism tax 4,052 238 4,062 238
Other income/expense 6,175,909 17.078 5,193,077
Interest expense (57,488) (57 4B8)
Net nonoperating revenues 36,170,749 17.078 36,187,827
Change in net position 8,185,110 300,106 8,485,218
Net Position, beginning of year (as resiated) 168,453,279 9,862,182 178,315,451
Net Position, end of year $ 176,638,388 $ 10,162,288 3 186,800,677

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW JERSEYSPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Cormponent Unit of the State of New Jersay)

Statarment of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Fayments to suppliers
Beneficial revse matetials

Net cash {used for) provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Tourism tax revenues
Landfill rermadiation and post-glosura

Wet cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capltal and Related Financing Activities
State sppropriations
Purchase of capital assets
Sale of capital agsels
Repayment of racetrack toans

Net cash provided by {used for) capital financing activities

Gash Flows from Investing Activities
Interost
Cash flows used for investments

Net cash (usad for) investing activities
Met increase in cash and cash equivalenty
Cash and cash equivaients, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of yaar

Reconciliation of oparating (loss) incomae to net cash
{used) provided by operating acfivities:

Operating (foss) income

Depregiatioh expange

Change in assefs and liabilities:
Decrease In Receivables, net
Decrease (n Other Assels
{Increase) n Deferrad Quiflows
increase In Deferrad Inflows

(Decrease)/increase in Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities

{Decragse) Incregse in Other Liabilities
(Decraass) increasa in Deforred Ravenue
fue toffrom) other funds

Qther

Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities

Saee Notes to Financial Statemeants
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NISEA Solid Waste Total
Entecprise Enterptise Enmerprise
Fund Fund Funiis
34,050,480 5 28,282,388 ¥ 64,281.878

{9,457 771) {2.226,236) (11,684,007)
{51,538.674) (24,427,928) (75.967.602)
530,165 530,165

(25,997 955} 3,155,389 (22,839,566)
3,982 446 3,882 448
(2,236,743) (2,236,743

3,982 446 (2,236,743} 1,745,703
26,000,000 26,000,004
(#.847,933) {39,000) (2,986,950
283,500 293,500
1,183,300 1,183,300
24,528,868 (38,000} 24 488 B6R
{57 488) 17,078 (40,410
{346.627) (46,627)

{67 488} {328, 549) (387.037)
2455871 853,007 3,008 868
7,175,626 7.384 718 14,560,344

§ B B3I 497 3 7837815 3§ 17,668,312
§ (27,985 639) & 283,028 § {27.702.611)
14,278,089 3e8,272 14,877,371
2,205,173 116,275 2,321,448
1,507,760 1,507,750
(5,104,722} {5,104.722)
4,870,108 4,970,106
(3,344 311} 694,382 {2.645.948)
(4,301,971} 426,729 (3,875.242)
(8,5906,962) 34,758 (8,872,193}
1,118,861 1,116,961

B83 523 87 993 771,518

& (25,897 D5%5) & 3,158,389 % (22,83D,566)




NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
{a Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Staternent of Fiduclary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2015

Mitigation Transpotialion Third Farty
Trust Planring Escrow Total
Agzais
Cash & 4,463,081 5 2817268 & 484,882 % 7.88501%
Accounts receivable 1,887,032 1,887 D32
tradund racaivabie : 1+ 475 543
Capital Assets - Depreciable, net 6,523,480 6523480
Tetal Assats 4,463,087 11,337.808 485,137 16,286,076
Linhilitios
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities a2 2,336 2.8968
Construction deposits 265,987 264,987
Rutherord post clsute saturity 157,418 157.4148
Envircnmentat remediation AB5 137 ABE 137
Secyrity deposits 128,328 126,229
Miligation deposits 128,083 128,092
tnterfund payabla 108,131 108,131
Contract retainage payable 562,046 550,377 1,113,323
Total Liahilities 1,380 536 552,113 485,137 2,388,286
Net Fosition
Invested in Capital Assets, net £,523,400 6,523,480
Blackstrap Broadceasting ascrow 1,473,392 1.173.392
Bloomberg escrow 1,373,711 1,373,711
Resarve for Mitigation 330,696 330,606
Main Streat Program 150,631 160,631
Transpodation Planning District 4,281,655 4,261,655
Othar 84,115 B4, 115
Not Postion Meld In Trust $  3112,545 5 10,785,145 & % 13,887 680

See Notes to Finangial Slatemerds 21



NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
(a Component Unit of the State of New Jersay)

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2015
Mitigation Transportation Third party
Trust Praring Esorow Tatal
Additions
Transportation Planning District feas 3 F 1302364 & $ 1,302,364
Bloomberg lease ravenue 127,259 127,254
Interest 3,267 2,401 5.668
Grant revenues 1,887 032 1,887,032
Blackstrap escrow 168,303 188,303
318,829 3,201,797 3,520 626
Deductions
Mitigation expenses 190,727 190,727
MASSTR Grami expenses 1,697,158 1,697 150
180,727 1,687,159 1,867 B85

Change in net position 128,102 1,604,638 1,632,740
Mat Position, beginning of year (as restated) 2,984,443 8,764,088 11,748,531
Adjustments to Net Posilion:

Capital autiays 1,359,884 1,359,984

Depreciation expense {E43,665) (843 565)
Net position, end of yaar $ 3,112,545 § 10,785,145 % % 13,857,690

See Motes to Financial Siatements
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Organization

The New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority (the "Authotity” or NJSEA) was created by the laws of the
Stale of New Jersey of 1971, Chapter 137, and enacted May 10, 1971, as supplemented and amended (the
"Act"y, N is constituted as an instrumentality of the State, exercising public and essential governmenial
functions. The Act empowers the Authority 10 own and pperate various projects, located in the State of New
Jersey, including stadiums and other buildings and facilities for athletic contests, horse racing, and other
spactator sporling events, trade shows, and other expositions.

The Authority has no stockholders or equity holders, and all bond proceeds, revenues, or other cash received
must be applied for specific purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and related bond
resolutions, for the security of the bondholders. The Authority's Board conslsts of the President of fhe
Authority, the State Treasurer, and a member of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission, appointed by the
Governor, who are members ex officio, and eleven members appointed by the Governor with the advice and
consent of the State Senate,

On January 13, 1992, the New Jersey legisiature adopted Chapter 375 of P.L. 1991, which approved the
issuance of bonds, Siate Contract Bonds, by the Authority, pursuant 1o a contract between the Authority and
the Siate Treasurer. The coniract requires the Treasurer 1o provide funds from the General Fund of the State
necessary o pay the debt service on the bonds, subject to and dependent upon annual appropriations by the
State Legislature. On November 24, 1908, the contract was restated and amendad 1o expand the scape of
profects aligible for the issuance of bonds to include the Wildwoods Convention Center project. In 2009, the
Autherity made a change in an accounting principle for State Confract Bonds.  Accordingly, the assets,
liabitities, revenue and expenses related {o the State Contract Bonds have been removed from the Authority's
financial statemants. The State Contract Bonds will now be reported directly by the State.

Effective February 5 2015, The New Jersey Meadowlands Commission ("NJMC") was merged with the
NJSEA by an act of legisiation. The NJMC Board of Commissioners was dissolved and all assets, liabilities
and responsibilities of the NJMC were transferred to the NJSEA.

The former New Jersey Meadowlands Commission was created by an Act of the State Legisiature in 1968
{N.J.5.A 13:17-1 et seq) and tasked with a three-fold mandate: to provide for orderly development of the
region, to provide facilities for the sanitary disposal of solich waste, and to protect the delicate balance of
nature.,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Reporting Entity

The Gavernmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"Y establishes the criteria used in determining
which organizations should be included in these financial statements, The GASE's Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, requires the inclusion of
government organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable.  Financial accauntability is
defined as: 1) appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board and either (a) the ability to
impose will by the primary government or (b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial
henefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government; or 2) fiscal dependency on the prirary
governmert,

The GASH establishes the criteria used in determining which organizations should be included in the
Autherity's financial slatemenis. Accounting principles generally acceptad in the Uniled States of America
require the inclusjon of the transactions of government arganizations for which the Authority is financiaily
acoountable.
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Organization

The New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority (the "Authority” or NJSEA) was created by the laws of the
State of New Jersey of 1971, Chapter 137, and enacted May 10, 1971, as supplemented and amended (the
“Act”). It is consliluted as an instrumentality of the State, exercising public and essential governmental
functions. The Act empowers the Authority 1o own and operate various projects, focated in the State of New
Jersey, including stadivms and other buildings and facilities for athlatic contasts, horse racing, and other
spectator sporting events, trade shows, and other expositions.

The Authority has no stockholders or equity holders, and all bond proceeds, revenues, or other cash received
must be applied for specific purposas in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and related bond
resolutions, for the securily of the bondholders. The Authority's Board consists of the President of the
Authority, the State Treasurer, and a member of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission, appainted by the
Governor, who are members ex officio, and eleven members appointed by the Governor with the advice and
consent of the State Senate.

On January 13, 1982, the New Jersey legislature adopted Chapter 375 of P.L, 1991, which approved the
issuance of bonds, State Contract Bonds, by the Authorily, pursuant to a contract betweaen the Authority and
the State Treasurer. The contract requires the Treasurer to provide funds from the General Fund of the Siate
necessary to pay the dabt service on the bonds, subject to and dependent upon annual appropriations by the
State Legisiature. On November 24, 18498, the contract was restated and amended to expand the scope of
projects eligible for the issuance of honds {o include the Wildwoods Convention Center project. In 2009, the
Authority made a change in an accounting principle for State Contract Bonds,  Accordingly, the assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses related to the State Contract Bonds have been removed fram the Authority's
financial statements. The State Contract Bonds will now be reported directly by the State.

Effactive Felruary 5, 2015, The New Jersey Meadowlands Commission ("NJMC") was merged with the
NJSEA by an act of legisiation. The NJMC Board of Commissioners was dissolved and all assets, liabilities
and responsibilities of the NJMC were transferred to the NJSEA.

The former New Jersey Meadowlands Commission was created by an Act of the State Legislature in 1968
{(N.LSA 131741 et seq) and tasked with a three-fold mandate: to provide for orderly development of the
region, to provide fachities for the sanitary disposal of solid waste, and to protect the delicale balance of
nature,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Reporting Entity

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {"GASB") establishes the criteria used in determining
which organizations should be included in these financlal staternents, The GASBE's Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, requires the inclusion of
government arganizations for which the Authority is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as: 1) appointment of a voling majority of the component unit's board and either (a) the abitity to
impose will by the primary government or (b) the possibility that the compaonent unit will provide a financial
benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government; or 2} fiscal dependeancy on the primary
government.

The GASE establishes the criteria used in determining which organizations shouid be included in the
Authority's financiat statements, Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require the inclusion of the transactions of government crganizations for which the Authority is financially
accountable.
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financgial Statements
December 31, 20115

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(k)

The extent of financial accountability is based upon several criteria including: appointment of a voting
majority, imposition of will, financial benefit fo or burden on a primary government and financial
accountability as a result of fiscal dependency.

Cn February 23, 1998, the Authority assumed the assets and liabilities and undertook the existing
operations of the Wildwoods Convention Cenier. The asseis and [labilities ware recorded at fair value and
the difference was recorded {o net agsets, invested in capital facilities.

On Februaty 5, 2015, the NJMC was merged with the NJSEA by an act of legislation and its asseis and
liabilities were transferred at book value to NJSEA,

The Authorily is a component unit included in the State of New Jersey's comprehensive annual financial
report. The NJSEA requires significant subsidies from and has material transactions with the State of
New Jersey and depends on certain tax revenues that are economically sensitive.

Basis of Presentation

The financial staterments of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generaily accepted
accounting policies ("GAAP™ as applied in governmental units. The GASB is the accepted standard
sefting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more
significant of the Authority's accounting policies are described below.

Government - Wide Statemenis

The staterment of net position and the statement of activities display information which include the overall
financial activities of the Authority. These statements distinguish betwesn the governmental and business-
type activities of the Authority. Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental
revenues and other non-exchange transactions. Business-lype activities are financed in whole or in part
by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between diract axpenses and program revenues for the
Authority's business-type aclivities and- for each function of the Authority's governmental activities. Direct
axpenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to & particular function. Program revenues inciude {a) charges paid by recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particutar program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenuas,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Authority's funds. Separale statements for
each fund category applicable to the Authority governmental and proprietary are presented. The emphasis
of fund financial stalements is on major governmentat and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. Both enterprise funds are considered major. Al remaining governmental are aggregated and
reported as non-major funds,

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as fees for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are thoge in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as investment income,
result from non-exchange transactions or anciltary activities.
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MNew Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {continued)

{c

The Authority reporis the fallowing major governmental fund;

+  General Fund. This is the general operating fund of the Authority. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

»  Environinental Center Fund, The inlention of the Environmental Center Fund Is to account for
all financial resources required to operate the Environmental Center and Science Center,

»  MAGNET Fund. The intention of the MAGNET Fund is to set aside funds to be used for tax relief
incentives for District municipalities,

The Authority reports the following maijor enterprise funds:

= Solid-Waste-Enterprise Fund. This fund accounts for the activities of the landfills operated by
the Authority, as well as the ¢losure and post-ciosure costs of such landfills.

+  NJSEA Enterprise Fund. This fund accounts for activities of the racetracks operated by the
Authority, which have operations that are feased. The activities of the Wildwood Convention
Center are also included in this fund.

The Fiduciary fund accounts for the proceeds of deposits held in trust for athers.  Tax sharing and
arvironmental activities are reported in this fund, Transportation Planning and Mitigation Trust are private
purpose funds under which revenue and expenditures benefit other governments.

The accounts of the Authority are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to
ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund
accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds or in
accordance with activities or objectives specified for the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting
entity with a self-batancing set of accounts.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measuremeant focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the related
cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives (or receives) value without
directly receiving {(or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and other contributions, Revenue
from such non-exchange transactions is recognized in the fizcal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
maodified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available to pay liabilities of the current period. The Authority recognizes revenues that are expected {o be
collected within 20 days of year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest of general long-term debt, pensions, other post-employment benefits, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in government funds. Proceeds of tong-term debl
are reported as other financing sources.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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{d} Net Posfiian

The Authority classifies its components of net position as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
including resiricied capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding batances of any bands, morlgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, If there are any significant unspent
refated debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the dabt atiributable to the unspent proceeds are
not included in the calculation of net investad in caplital assets. Rather that portion of the debt ia
included in the same net assets component a5 the unspent proceeds.

+  Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net assets used
through extarnal consiraints imposed by creditors (such as through delt convents), grantors,
contributions, or laws or reguiations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

+  Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net agsets that do not meet the definition
of "restricted” or "net invesied in capital assets”

(e} Fund Balance Classifications

The Authority has established a policy of classifying fund balances in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 54 as follows.

+  Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by external resource providers (for example, grant providers), constitutionally, or through enabling
legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively,
restrictions may be modified or released only with the consent of resource providers,

+  Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
deterrnined by a formal action of the Authority's highest level of decision-making authority.
Commitrmants may be changed or lifted only by the government taking the same formal action that
originally imposed the constraint.

+  Assigned fund balance comprises amounts intended to be used by the Authority for specific
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or hody o which the
governing body delegates the authority. Governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned
fund balance represents the amount that is not rastricted or committed. This indicates that resources
in other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund.

+  Unassignhed fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts
not contained in the other classifications, Unassigned amounts are technically available for any
purpose. If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, then it will be reported as a negative
amount in the unassigned classification in that fund. Positive unassigned amounts will be reported
only n the genaral fund.

{f) Accumulated Vacation Time

Salaried employees of the Authority may accumulate vacation time up to & maximum of their total vacation
time for one year, This accumulated vacation time must be used within ona year of the year earned, Upon
termination of employment, salaried employaes are enfitied to receive a maximum lump sum payment of
their accumulated vacation time.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g)

(h)

()

)

{k)

(f)

Valuation of Investments

State and local government securities, repurchase agreements, and cerlificates of deposit are investments
In nonparticipating investment contracts which management concludes are not significantly affected by the
impaitment of the cradit standing of the Autharity or other factors. Credit ratings for these investments are
not available. These investments are recorded at fair market value,

NJSEA Enterprise Fund Revenues and Expenses

The Authority profmotes certain evants held at the Arena. The gross revenues and expenses are reflected
in the financial statements. The Authority defines Arena revenues and expenses as being directly or
indirectly related to facilities and events. Arena revenues include revenues related to other facilities al the
Sports Complex. COperating Revenues related {o ticket sales, events and advertising are recognized when
tickets are used or after events {ake place. Arena event expenses include only expenses directly related
to events and fo support facilities. Al other revenues and expenses are defined accordingly.

Non-Gperating Revenues and Expenses - Non-operating revenues: State payments received related 1o
State subsidies and tourism taxes coflecied; management fees; interest revenue earned on investiments
and interest expense. Non-Dperating expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the
liability is incurred.

U=e of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assels and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilifies at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amaounts of revenues and expensas during the reporting period.
Actuat results could giffer from those estimates,

Unearned Revenues

Unearned Revenue represents revenues collected but not earned as of December 31, 2015, This
nrimarily consists of ground rent pre-payments and solid waste disposal tickets sold to haulers but still
outstanding.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed capital fixed assets are recorded
at their estimated fair market value at the time received Capital fixed assets related to the Arena are
considered non-parforming assets and are shown separately in Footnote #4,

Asset lives used in the caiculation of depreciation are generally as follows:
Buildings 35-060 years
Infrastructure 15 years
Machinery and equipment 2-20 years
Land improvernents 10-20 years
Leasehold rights 24 years

The Authority considers any asse! acquired or improvement made to any building or facility, with a value
over §1,000 and an estimated useful life over one year, a depreciable capital asset.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(m} Accrued Liahility for Closure and Pust-closure Costs

(n}

(o)

(r)

(q)

{r)

(s)

The accrued liability for closure and post-closure costs represents funds collected as part of the solid
waste tariff, which are required to be established to pay for the cost of closure and post-closure of landfills.

Payable from Restricted Assets — Landfill Closure

The payable from restrictad assets - landfill closure, represents funds collected as part of the solid waste
surcharge, determined by the Depariment of Environmental Protection, which are required lo be
established to pay for the cost of closure and post closure of landfills, These amounts are baged upon
engineering studies which are evaluated on an annual basis.

Payment of Lieu of Taxes

in accordance with a provision of the enabling Act, properties and income of the Authority are exempt
from taxation. However, payments in ieu of taxes are made to municipalities to compensate for loss of
tax revenues by reason of acquisition of real property by the Authority.

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments include short-term investments that are carried at cost, which approximates
market. The Authority considers ali highly liguid investment with a maturity of three months or iess when
purchased to be cash equivalents, Restricted cash and equivalent are each and shori-term investments
that are required for a specific purpose related to restrictions that may be contained in bond resolutions,

Other Assels
Other assels include prepaid expense, prepaid insurance and loan receivable,
Deferrad Qutfiows and Daferrad Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This section represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so s
not recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure) untit then,

In addition to liabilties, the statement of nat position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This section represents an addition of net position that applies to a future period and 5o is not
recogrized as an inflow of resources (revenus) until that time.

Bath deferred inflows and outflows are pension related.
income Taxes

The Authority is exempt from federal income taxes under the internal Revenue code Section 115 and from
state income {axes under N.J.S.A. 27:25-16, Accordingly, no provision is recorded for federal and state
income taxes.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

[t} Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement

The Authority adopted GASB 68 in 2015, GASB 68 addresses accounting and financial reporting for
pensions that are provided to the employees of state and local government employers, This statement
establishes standards for measuring and recognizing fiabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and expense related to pensions. Note disclosure and required supplementary
information requirements about pensions also are addressed, For defined benefit pensions, this
staternent also identifies the meathods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments,
discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to
periods of employee setvice, In accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, the Authority has reported its
(PERS) net pension liabifity, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension
axpenses.

The Authority also adopted GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date (GASE 71). GASB 71 requires thal, at transition, a government
recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent
to the measurament date of the beginning net pension liability.

The provisions of GASB 88 and 71 have been applied o the 2015 beginning net position. As a result of
the implementation of GASB 68 and 71, beginning net posttion and fund batances as of January 1, 2045
have been restated as follows:

Governmental
Activities*
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 $ 34503733
Restatement for Pension Liability & Related Expense {12,031,662)
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 (As Restateq) § 22472071
Genaral Fund
Baginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 L3 7,997 823
Restatement for Fension Liabilty {469,474)
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 (As Restated) 3 7.532.349

Business-Type

Activities
Beginning Net Position - Decembier 31, 2014 208738013
Restatemeant for Pension Liability & Related Expense {28,422 554}
Beginning Met Position - Decembar 31, 2014 {As Reslated) $ 178,345,461
NJSEA
Beginning Net Positlon - December 31, 2014 $ 187,031,747
Restatement for Pension Liability & Related Expanse {18,578 468)
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 (As Restated) $ 168,453 279
Solid Waste
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 $ 19,708,268
Restaterment for Pension Liability & Related Expense (9,844 0B6)
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 (As Restatad) 5 9882182

* See note 2({v)
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(u} Pending Accounting Standards

The Authority is currently evaluating the effects of the following pronouncements on the financial
statements:

« BASB 72 - “Fair Value Measuremaent and Application”, effective for periods baginning after June 15,
2015,

« 3ASB 73 - "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Relaled Asssts That Are Not within
the Scope of GASB Staternent 68, and Amendrments to Certain Pravisions of GASE Staternents 67 and
68" effective for periods beginning after June 156, 2015 - except for those provisions that address
employars and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the
scope of Statement 68, which are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016,

+ GASB 74 - ‘Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”,
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016

+ GASB 75 - "Accounling and Financial Reporting for Postempioyment Benefits Other Than Pensions”,
effective for pariods beginning after June 15, 2017

+ GASB 76 - "The HMierarchy of (Generally Accepted Accounting FPrnciples for State and lLocal
Governments”, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015,

+ GASE Staternent 77 - "Tax Abatement Disclosures”, effective for pariods beginning afler December 15,
2015,

+ (GASB Statement 78 - “Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension
Plans”, effective for periods beginning after Dacember 15, 2016

« GASE Statement 79 - "Certain External Investmeant Pools and Pool Participan!s®, effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2015, except for certain provisions on porifolio quality, custodial credit risk,
and shadow pricing, those provisions are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2015,

+ GASE Staternent 80 - "Blending Requiraments for Certain Component Units — An Amendment of
GASB Staternent No. 14, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018,

{v) Net Position Restatement

The Authority has recorded the following restaternents, in addition to those related to GASB #68 and #71,
0 net position as of January 1, 2015:

Govermental
Activities

Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 {As Restated for GASE 68) § 22472071
Restatement for Transfer of Capital Asset to Fiduciary Fund (5,286,408)
Beginning Net Position - December 31, 2014 (As Restaled) $_ 17,185,663
Fiduciary Fund

Beginning Net Position of Fiduciary Activities - December 31, 2014 2757017
Restatement for Capital outlay from 2014 not capitalized 720,663
Restatement for Transfer of Capital Asset to Fiduciary Fund 5,286,408
Beginning Net FPosition of Fiduciary Activities- December 31, 2014 (As Restaled) 5 B784088
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3, Cash and Investments
The components of cash and investments are as follows:

Fiduciary Fund
Balance Balance
Dec 31, 2015 Dag 31, 2015

Cash and Investments:

Unrestricted:
Cash on Mand 5 7,660,196 § 7,865,011
tnvestments 28,622,084
NJ Cash Management Fund 5,680,570
Unrestricted Cash & Investments 41972850 7,865,011
Restricted;
Cash on Hand 3,544,725
Invesiments 2,201,171
Restricted Cash & Investments 5,745,846
Total Cash and Investments 5 47718746 % 7,885 011

For 2015, restricted cash ang investments inciude 486,210 on the Camden project which is par? of the
operations of the Wildwoods Convention Center

All demand deposits and certificates of deposit, excapt deposits held by the Trustee, of any depository must
be fully secured by lodging collateral securily of obligations secured by the United States with the Trustee or
bank desgignated by the Trustee, At December 31, 2015 all demand deposits were collateralized.

The N.J. Cash Management Fund is a money rmarket fund managed by the State of New Jersey Division of
Investments. P.L. 1950, ¢ 270 and subsequent legistation permit the Division o invest in a variety of
securities, including, in the case of short-term investments, obligations of the U.S. Government and cerain of
its agencies, commercial paper, cerlificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, and
loan participation notes. All such investments must fall within the guidelines set forth by the regulations of the
State of New Jersey, State Investment Council, Securities in the N, J. Cash Management Fund are insured or
registered, or securities hetd by the Division or its agent in the N, J. Cash Management Fund's name.

4. Investment in Facilities

investment in facilities is stated at cost, which includes all costs during the construction peried for 2cguisition
of land, righis of way, acquisition cost of acquiring facllities, surveys, engineering costs, roads, construction
costs and additions to facilities, administrative and financial expenses and interest during construction net of
interagt income earned on the ynexpended funds, including debt service reserve funds net of accumulated
depreciation. Depraciation is computed by the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of the
related assels.
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

MNotes o Financial Statements
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4. Investment in Facilities {continued)

Decernber 31, December 31,
2014 (as restoted)  Additinns Deletions 2015
Governmental Activities:
Capiiat assets hal are not belng depreciated:
Langd 8 20184401 g - ] 20,154 401
Total capital assats ol being depreciated 20,154 491 . . 20,154 40
Caplial assets thal are being depreciated:
Building ang buitding imp:ovements 16,437 465 86776 - 16,304,245
Machinery and gquipen 3633672 - (69,372 3,614,300
Yalai at historicat costs 20,421,141 365,776 (89,272 20.418,545
Lass accurnulated doareciation for:
Buiiding and buitding improvements {9.581.211} . - (9,551.211)
Machinery and equipment (3417272} {1.517.486) f0.372 (4,865 ,386)
Total accumulated gepieciation (13,008 ,483) {1,517 486) 69,372 (14 456.507)
Total capilal agsets heing deprectated
netof accumuiated depraciation £  7.112B58 5 {1.150.710) & . 5 5‘961&_]'43
Govermental activities capital assets, net & 27267058 5 (1,i150,110) £ - g 26,116,349
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets hat are not being depreciated:

Land % 117,149,000 ) - ) - § 117145000

Suliding ang buliding improvemenis {1) . 39,868,193 - 30,268,183
Tusal capital assets nat being deprociated 117,149,000 39,868,193 . 187,017,193

Capilal assels thal are being depreciated:

Hulkding and building inprovements 411,458,530 2,702,600 (112,208,301 301,851,229

Machinery and equipment 85,167,741 285,240 (19,078) 85433504
Total a4 histosical cosls 496 526,271 2,087,240 (112,228,377) 387,385,133

Lizss accurnulaled depragiation for:

Bullding ang building improvements (26251944 5) (14,273,000 72,296,108 {204 ,486.,327)

Machinary and equipm ert (75,948,117 {84 680) 19,078 (76,0%3,701)
Tota! accum tlsted depreciaton (338,467 562) {14,387 660) 72,315,184 (280,51),038)
Tatal capital passels being depreciatad

net of accumulated deprediation % 158,158,708 $(11,270420) 5 (3991318 5 106875005
Capial axse1s that ase baing amontized:

Landfiig 5902134 . . 5,902,134

Telal at historical costs 5002 134 - - 5,802,134
Less accumuiated amortization for:

Landfils (5.394,105) {338,687) - (5.732,792)
Tatal accumulated assontizalion (5,394,105} (338.6R7) . {5,732,792)
Total tancfill lile bedig amotized

riet of atcumulated amotization 3 508,029 % {338,8B7) 5 - 5 169,342 .

Business-Type activities capital assols, nat 5 275,815,738 $ 28,159,086 & (39.513,193) 5 264061629

Fiduciary Activities:
Caphat assets that are belng depreciaied:

Infrasirucrs $ 600707 § 1.359,984 % - 5 1367055
Tolal al historical costs B,007071 1,369 584 . 7,367 055

Less accumulaied depreciation for:

Intrastiuclore - (843 555) . (843,565}
Taotal aceurnuizted depreciation . (843,5635) - {843,585}
Tolat iduciary assets being depreciated

netof accumutated depreciation 5  g0070N § 516419 % - 5 B523480

(1) Building and Building Im pravements not being deprecialed rapresent the net hook witue of the Arena, 8 non perlorming
assals, as of December 31, 2015
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8. Notes Receivable

New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

MNotes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

The Authority, pursuant to its Racetrack Ground Lease Agreament with the New Jersey Thoroughbred
Horsemen's Association Inc. and its Racetrack Ground Lease Agreement with the New Meadowlands
Racetrack, LLC is owed Minimum Lease Payments, under both Agreements. The balance due at December
31, 2015 is 311,467,940 and comprises of the New Jersey Thoroughbred Horsermen's Association Inc
halance of $8 706,687 and. the New Meadowlands Racetrack LLC balance of $2,761,251. The notes carry an
annual interest rate of 3%.

The Notes Receivabie schedule is as follows:

Year
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

Long Term Liabilities

New Jersey Thoroughbred
Horseman's Association

New Meadowlands

Racetrack, LLC

$ 887,693 % 1,118,834
1,554 985 1,152,408
1,764,586 489,911
1,833,713
1,548,770
1,016,940

$ 8,706 687 % 2,761,253

During 2015 the following changes in components of Tong term Hahilites were:

{aovernmental Activities:
PERS Pension Laibility
Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 Lizbillty
Other Post Employment Benefits

Business-Type Activites:

NJSEA Enterprise
Honds Fayable

PERS Pension Liability
Chapter 18, P.L. 2009 Liabtlity
Waorkmans Comp Claims
Union Pension Liabilities
Environmeantal Remediation

Qther Liabilities

Solid Waste Enterprise

Closure Liabilities

PERS Pension Liability
Chapler 19, P.L. 2009 Liability
Compensated Absencas

Balance Balance
(As restated) Due Within
December 31,2014 Issued Retired Decembear 31, 2015 One Year
3 10665560 § 1488177 ] g 12,153,737
175,446 {21.513) 163,833 22,000
£,982.115 1,868,034 (892,272 10,267 777
by 19823121 0§ 3386231 0§ (B1lBas & 22565447 % 22000
Balance Balance Oue Within
Degember 31, 2014 ssued Retirad December 31, 2015 Qre Year
5 2488650 % & (48,145) & 2442505 & 627000
13,746,462 2,707,387 165,453,849
514,824 (63,127) 451 607 63,000
6,828,198 5,360 (325.819) 2,507,729
45 926 519 (4.256,025) 41,672,444 1,200,000
2 657,533 B17.467 3,275,000
486,416 50,000 536,416
3,380,973 559,890 3,950,863
B, 726,368 1,217.588 9,043,966
143,546 (17.60%) 126,845 17,000
421,326 (48.215) 3731 48,000
& BB,332815 § 5,157,682 § (4710780 & B3.732,575 & 49855000
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7. Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds payable consist of the following:

Wildwood
NJDEP NJDEP Bands
Fund Loan  Trust Loan Payable interest Total

2016 $ 38468 § 10000 § 579332 § 60057 § 687857

2017 38,468 15,000 183,031 45,074 281,673
2018 38,468 15,000 187,607 39,748 280,823
2019 18,787 15,000 192,297 34,308 260,392
2020 16,000 197,105 28,900 241,006
2021-2024 60,000 838,942 58,928 457,870

$ 134181 $ 130000 F 2178314 $ 287 M5  § 2709520

Wildwoods Revenue Bonds 1996 Series A -The Authority assumed these bonds on February 23, 1998, as
an ohbligation and fiability of the Wildwoods Convention Center. The bonds were authorized by the Grealer
Wildwoods Tourism Improvement and Developrment Authority and issued to the City of Wildwood in the
amount of $3,400,000 for the acquisition of the Wildwoods Convention Center in 1986,

On November B, 1998, the Authority entered into The Ominibus intergavernrnental Agreament with tha City of
Wildwood, the Borough of Wildwood Crast, the Cily of North Wikdwood, the Greater Wildwoods Tourism
Improvement and Development Authority and the Treasurer of the State of New Jersey. This agreement
restated the original terms and conditions of the Authority's assigned obligation under the bonds and replaced
the previcus Bond Resolution. Under the terms of the new agreement, repayment of principal and interestis to
be funded by the Available Revenues of the Wildwoods Convenlion Cenier after paymeni of operating
expenses, funding of the maintenance reserve fund and payments in lieu of taxes, Should available revenues
be nsufficient to provide the required debt service amount any unpaid portion accrues to the following year to
be funded by that year's available revenues. If it should be deermed necessary, the Authority may request an
express separate appropriation from the State Treasurer to caver any shortfall. The Authority does not pledge
the revenues, rents fees, rates, charges or other income derived from operations or ownership of any of its
other projects, to the repayment of these bonds. In 2015 there was not enough available revenue after the
above-mentioned expenses o make full payment on dett service for these Revenue Bonds,

Interest Costs - Interest costs for the year 2015 was $57 488,

Notes payable consist of the following:

Date Criginat [ecember 31,

lssued Amount 2015
Loan frorm the NJDEP infrastructure Loan
through August 1, 2024 at §.00% 2010 5664000 $134.101
Loan from the NJDEP infrastructure Trust Loan
through August 1, 2024 at various rates
between 3% and 5% 372010 180,000 130.000
Total Notes Payable $264.191
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7. Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)

On March 1, 2012, the Authority entered into an agreemeant with the State of New Jersey acting by and
through the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection in which the Authority received the proceeds
of a $564,000 loan from the NJDEP Infrastructure Fund and a $180,000 loan from the NJDEP infrastructure
Trust.  The proceeds were used o pay for the purchase of equipment for the purpose of cleaning and
maintaining storm drains. The interest was calcuiated at 0.00% on the NJDEP infrastructure Fund Loan and
is for @ term of 24 years. The interest was calculated between 3.00% and 5.00% on the NJDEP infrastructure
Trust Loan and is for a term of 24 years. Interest cost for 2015 on the NJDFP Infrastructure Fund Loan was
$6,100.

8. Operating Leases
The Authority has commitments to lease certain buildings and office eguipment under operating leases that

expire through 2030, Total operating lease payments made during the year ended December 31, 2015 were
5258,178 Future minimum lease payments as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, Amount

2016 5 204 082
2017 204,082
2018 199,982
2019 197,932
2020 197,932

2021-2025 989,660

2026-2030 940,257

5 2933927

8. State Contract Bonds

The New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority issued State Contract Bonds to fund various capital
improvements of the Authority on behalf of the State of New Jersey. These bonds are considerad conduit debt
as permitted under Interpretation No.2 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

None of the Authority's revenues, rents, fees, rates, charges or other income and receipts derived by the
Authority from its operation or ownership of any of its projects are pledged or assigned to the payment of the
principal or redemption price of and interest on such bonds. The State Contract Bonds are paid solely by the
State of New Jersey.

The principal amount outstanding on the State Contract Bonds at December 31, 2015 was $394,425,000.
This amount is excludad from the financial statements of the Authority.
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10. Tourism Tax

11.

Upon transfer of the Wildwoods Convention Center from the Greater Witdwood Tourism improvement and
Devetopment Authority ("GWTIDA" on February 23, 1998 (see Note 1}, the Authority assumed the right to
receive 90% of the proceeds of a 2% tourism related retail receipls tax pursuant 1o NJSA 40:54D-1 et Seq,
{the "Tourism Improvement and Development District Law”) for the construction and promotion of a new
convention center facility and the operation, maintenance and promotion of the existing center. The remaining
10% of the funds generated by the tax is allocated to GWTIDA for its continuing promotion of tourism in the
area. The tax is imposed and collected by ordinance and with the cooperation of the municipalities in the
Greater Wildwoods {i.e., North Wildwood, Wildwood and Wildwood Crest),

Racetrack Ground Leases

Monmouth Park Raceltrack

On February 29, 2012, the Authority entered into the Racetrack Ground Lease Agreement {"Agreement”) with
the New Jersey Thoroughbred Horsemen's Association, Inc, ("Tenant”) whereby the Authorily leases real
property located in the Borough of Oceanport, County of Monmaouth, on which the Authority has constructed
an operates a thoroughbred racetrack.

The initial term of the Agreement runs through December 31, 2016, with 3 ten year renewal terms,

In consideration of the Authority's execution of this Agreement and Tenant's rights to lease and utilize the
premises and the leased equipment for the purposes sef forth in the Agreement the Tenant agrees to pay
Ground Rent, between 2012 through 2015, in the annual amount of $1; in the first 10 year renewal the Tenant
agrees o pay ground rent of the lessor of $250,000 or 5% of (he Tenant's annual net operating profit; in any
refnewal period after the first 10 year renewa! period the Tenant agrees fo pay Ground Rent of the lessor of
$500,000 or 5% of the Tenant's annual net operating profit.

in addition to Ground Rent, the Tenant shall be responsible for Minimum Lease Payments. To the extent that,
from the Closing Date through December 31, 2012, operating and maintenance expenses exceed revenues,
the Authority agrees to cover such excess expenses up o an aggregale amount not to exceed $9,000,000
herein referred to as the "2012 Minimum Lease Payment” The Tenant is not obligated (o repay the Authority
for the first $4, 000,000 of 2012 Excess Expenses. To the extent that, from January 1, 2013 through December
31, 2013, operating and malnienance expenses exceed revenues the Authority, agrees fo cover such excess
expenses up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $2,000,000, To the extent that, from January 1, 2014
through Decernber 31, 2014, operating and maintenance expenses exceed revenues the Authority, agrees to
cover such excess expenses up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $2,000,000.

As of December 31, 2014, the total Minimum Lease Payments due from the Tenant to the Autharity is
$9,000,000. Minimum Leagse Payments, generated by year, are payable to the Authority in monthly
instaliments over a 60 month period for each 2012, 2013 and 2014 year &l an annual interest rate of 3%. As of
December 31, 2015, the balance due from the Tenant was $8,706 687,

In addition to Ground Rent, Tenant shall also pay. pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Tenant's Real
Estate Tax Payments.

In addition to Ground Rent commaencing January 1, 2013, Tenant shall also pay to the Authorily as Additional
Rent, an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the Available Net Projact Revenues as defined in the Account
Wagering Participation and Project Operating Agreemeant dus to Tenant pursuant to the Account Wagering
Participation and Project Operating Agreement,
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Racetrack Ground Leases (continued)

Meadowlands Racatrack

On December 20, 2011 the Authority entered inta the Racetrack Ground Lease Agreemaent ("Agreement”) with
New Meadowlands Racetrack, LL.C. (*Tenant"} whereby the Authority leases real property located in the
Borough of East Rutherord, County of Bergen, on which the Authority has constructed an operates a
thoroughbrad racetrack.

The tnitial term of the Agreement runs through December 31, 2042, with 2 ten year renewal terms.

In consideration of the Authority's execution of this Agreement and Tenant's rights to lease and utilize the
premises and fhe leasad equipment for the purposes set forth in the Agreement the Tenant agress o pay
Ground Rent, for the first 5 years, the annual amount of §1; from the Bth anniversary (o the remainder of the
term the lessor of $500,000 or 10% of the Tenant's annual net aperating profit,

in addition to Ground Rent, the Tenant shalt be responsible for Minimum Lease Payments. To tha axient that,
from the Closing Date through December 31, 2012, operating and maintenance expenses exceed revenues,
the Authority agrees to cover such excess expenses up o an aggregate amount not to exceed $5,500,000
herein referred to as the “2012 Minimum Lease Payment”.

Minimum Lease Payments, are payable to the Authorily in monthly installments over a 80 month period
commencing January 1, 2013 at an annual inferest rate of 3%. As of December 31, 2015, the balance due
from the Tenant was $2,761,253.

in addition to Ground Rent, Tenant shall aiso pay, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Tenant's PILOT
Payments.

tn addition to the Ground Rent and commencing January 1, 2013, Tenant shall aise pay as Additional Rent an
amount equal to 10% of the Net Available Net Projects Revenue as defingd in the Account Wagering
Participation and Project Operating Agreement.

Pension, Retirement, and Deferred Compensation Plans

Plan Descriptiont and Employer and Employee Contributions - Salaried employees of the Authority and
Wildwood's Convention Center are covered by the Pubilic Employees’ Retirement System of the State of New
Jersey ("PERS"), a cost-sharing multiple-emiployer defined benefit public employee retirament system. PERS
issues & publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for PERS. That report may be obtained by writing PERS 21 the following address. Department of
the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 285, Trenten, NJ 08625, Establishment of or
amendments to PERS pension plans are done through New Jersey legisiation,

Al Authority salaried employees are required as a condition of employment to be mermbers of the PERS. A
member may retire on a service retirement allowance as early as age 60, no minimum service requirement
must he established. The formula for banefits is an annual altowance in the amount equal to years of service,
divided by 60, times the final average salary. Final average salary means the average of the salaries received
by the member for the last three years of creditable membership service preceding retirement or the highest
threa fiscal years of membership service, whichever provides the larger benefit. Benefits fully vest on reaching
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12. Pansion, Retirement, and Deferred Compensation Plans {continued)

10 years of service. Vested employees may retire at or after age 55 and receive reduced retiremsant benefits,
unless the employee has obtained 25 years of service prior to retirement, which permits full benefit payments,
The Systemn also provides death and disability benefits. Benefils are established by State siatute,

Effective May 21, 2010, the New Jarsey legisiature enacted changes in the PERS and other State amployee
pension plans (Chapter 1, P.L. 2010), The law made changes to the rule governing eligibility, the retirement
formula, compensation definition and positions eligible. Employees that are subject to a fixed number of hours
fewer than thirty-five per week are nol sligible {o join the PERS. Also, the current mulliplier of 1/55% changed to
1160, Section 38 of the law reguires the Authority to make the full annual employar's contribution ance the
calculation is computed by its actuary.

Covered Authority employees are required by PERS {o contribute 7.06% of defined salary. The Authority is
required by State Statute to contribute the rernaining amounts necessary (o pay benefits when due. The
PERS, on the recommendation of an actuary, who makes an annual actuarial valuation, cerifies the amount
of the Authority's contribution each year. The valuation is a determination of the financial condition of the
retirement system. It includes the computation of the present dollar value of benefits payable to former and
present members and the present dollar value of future employer and employee contributions, giving effect to
mornality among active and retired members and also to the rates of disability, retirement, withdrawal, former
service, salary, and interest.

The employee contributions required for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $645497 (7.06%).
Employer contributions for 2015 were $1,684,271, equal to the required contributions for the year.

Other Benefits ~ Salaried employees of the Authorily are eligible for participation in a section 401(k) deferred
compensation plan, the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authorily Savings and Investment Plan. Until July
31, 2011 the Authority contributed a maximum of 4% of the employee's salary up to the IRS maximum less the
porion attributable to the State pension plan ("PERS"), effective August 1, 2011 the Authority discontinued its
employer contribution. Annual employee contributions for 2015 were $238 607

The Authority also participates in two deferred compensation plans as follows:

{a) New Jersey State Employses Deferrad Compensation Plan This Plan is an IRC Section 457 deferred
compensation plan administered by the State of New Jersey and, accordingly, is included in the financial
statements of the State. The Flan, available to all State employees, permits them {o defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees untit termination,
retirerment, death, or an unforeseeable emergency, The Plan is funded solely from voluntary employee
contributions.  Employee confributions and investment earnings thereon are a part of the State Plan
Employees may defer a maximum 50% of their salary or $17,600, whichever is less. Investments are on an
individua! participant basis and the total investment for all the Authority employees is unknown.

(b} AIG Retirement — This 457(b) plan, which commeanced operations on December 31, 1985, is funded
solely from voluntary employee contributions. The Plan is administered by AlIG Retirement. All amounts of
compensation deferred under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
atiributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available {o the amployee or other
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the participating employaes, and are not included the
accompanying financial statements, Employee contributions in 2015 were $218,1892.
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12. Pension, Retirement, and Deferred Compensation Plans {confinued)

Additionally, some Authority ermployess are participants in certain pension plans administered by local unions
and contributions are made in accordance with terms of the union agreements of those employees, There are
about 13 active unions participating in their own pension plans in accordance with each specific union
agreement and based on each of the applicable union job trades. The tolal combined employer contribution
for all participating unions in 2015 was 51,865,947 and equal ta the required contribution for the year.

tinion plan financial statements may be obtained by writing to the relevant address below:

Local 137 (Box Office) Local 472 (Parking)

1012 Haddonfield Rd Suite 106 905 16" Street

Cherry Hill, NJ 08002 Washingten, DC 20006

Locat 711 (Painters) Local 825 (Cperating Enginsers)
27 Roland Ave, Suite 200 65 Springfield Ave

Mt Laurel, NJ 08054 Springfield, NJ 07081

Locat 164 (Electricians) Local 1412 (Security/ EMT)

425 Eagle Rock Avenue Suite 105 905 16" Street

Roseland, NJ 07068 Washington, DC 20006

Local 68 (HVAQ) Local 24 (Flumbers)

FO Box 534 PO Box 1028

West Caldwell, NJ 07006 Trentan, NJ 08628

Lacal 472 (Laborars) Local 632 (Stagehands LA T.5.E)
700 Raymond Blvd PO Baox 11844

Newark, NJ 07105 Newark., NJ 07101-4944

Local 560 {Teamsters)
O Box 8037

Summit Avenue Station
Union City, NJ Q7087

Mass Withdrawal Liabitity and Annual Payments Related to Local 137 - During 2007, the Authority
withdrew from the pensicn plan of Local 137 (Mutuels) causing a mass withdrawal termination for that plan.
Based upon this termination, the Authority is obligated to make annual payments to satisfy the employer's
contribution.

The amount of the Authority's obligation, based on actuarial estimates, is approximately $38.6 million and is
recognized in the 2015 firancial statements. The Authority will make annual cash payments of $1.2 million to
cover this liahility,

Mass Withdrawal Liability and Annual Payments Related other Unions - in May 2012, the Authority
leased the Monmouth Park operations to a private operator effectively ending its participation in the racging
ingustry. As a rasult in 2013, two unions issued emplover withdrawal demand notices to the Authority which
were recognized in the 2013 financial statements: the amount of the Authority's obligations based on the
demand letters are approximately Teamsiers Local 469 - $3.1 million angd Plumbers Local 9 $3580,000. The
Authority will make annual cash payments of $222,225 to cover this liability. In June 2015 withdrawal demand
notices were recognized for Local 1430, the amount of the obligation is $188,000 with annual payments of
$25,708.
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13. Public Emploves Retirement System

The Public Employee Relirement Systemn is 8 cost-shating, multiple employer defined benefit pension plan as
defined in GASE Statement No. 68, The Plan is administered by The New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits (Division). The more significant aspects of the PERS Plan are as follows:

Flan Membership and Conitributing Employers- Substantially all full-lime employees of the State of New Jersay
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency are enrolled in PERS, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other state pension fund or other
jurisdiction's pension fund. Membership and contributing employers of the defined berefit pension plans
consisted of the following at June 30, 2015:

nactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 166,514
Inactive plan members enfitled to but not yet raceiving benefits 846
Active plan members 272,846
Total 430,228

Significant Legislation - For State of New Jersey contributions to the PERS, Chapter 1. P.L. 2010, effective
May 21, 2010, raquired the State to resume making actuarially recomnmended contributions to the pension
plan on a phased-in basis over a seven year period beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 For
State fiscal year 2014, the State was required to make a minimum contribution representing 3/7" of the
actuarially detarmined contribution amount based on the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation.

Chapter 19, P.L. 2008, effective March 17, 2009, provided an option for local employers of PERS to coniribute
50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments due in State Fiscal Year
2009, Such an employer will be credited with the full paymant and any such amounts will not be included in
their unfunded liability, The actuaries will determine the unfunded ability of the PERS, by employer, for the
reduced normal and accrued liabifity contributions provided under this law. This unfunded Rability will be paid
by the emplayer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Pursuant to the provision of Chapter 78, P L. 2011, COLA increases were suspended for all current and future
retiress of the PERS,

Eor the year ended December 31, 2015 the Authority's total payroll for all employees was $7,863,473. Total
PERS cavered payrall was §8,373,841. Due to payroll system limitalions, covered payroll refers to pensionable
compensation, rather than total compensation, paid by the Authority to active employees covered by the Plan.

Spacific Contribution Requirements and benefit provisions — The contribution policy is sel by N.J.S.A 43115
and reguires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Members contribute at a uniform
rate. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, the active rmember contribution rate increased from
5.5% of annua! compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years beginning in July 2012,
Tha member contribution rate was 6,92% in State fiscai year 2015 and increased to 7.06%for State fiscal year
2016, commencing July 1, 2015, The phase-in of the additional incremantal member contribution rate will take
place in July of sach subseguent State fiscal year. Employers’ contribution amounts are based on an
actuarially determined rate. The annual employer contributions include funding for basic retirement
allowances and noncontributory death benefits. The Authority's cash basis contributions to the Plan for the
years ended December 31, 2015 were §1,376,480. Authority contributions are due and payable on Aprit 1% in
the second fiscat period subsequent to plan yvear for which the contributions requirements were calculated.
Authiority payments o PERS for the years ending December 31, 2015 consisted of the following:
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13. Public Employee Retirement System (continued)

Normal Cost $ 24292
Armottization of Accrued Liability 1,123,655
Total Pension 1,368,567
NCGI Premiums 92 558
Total Requiar Billing 1,459,125
Additional Billings and Adjustments:

ERI2 1,396
ERI3 107,619
Ch 19, PL 2004 102 241
Total PERS Payment $ 1,670,381

Ch, 18, P.L. 2009 billings reflect the recoupment of the 50% deferral of normai and accrued liability costs due
on April 1, 2009, As discussed above, the law set a fifleen year repayment schedule for the deferred amount,
with additional annual adjustrments to reflact the return on investment of actuarial net position of the plan on
deferred principal balances.

The vesting and benefit provigions are set by N.J.8.A, 43:158. PERS provides retirement, death and disability
benefits, All banefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of
service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier BDefinition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007,

2 Members who werg eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 8, 2008
3 Members who were eligible on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010

4 Members who were gligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5 Members who were ligitle to enroll on or after Jung 28, 2011

A service retirement benefit of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1
and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. 3ervice refirement
benefits of 1/60™ of finai average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are availabie to tier 1
and 2 members before reaching age 60, to tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 and tier 5 rnembers with 30
or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month
that & member retires prior to the ratirernent age of his/her respactive tier. Deferred retirement is available to
members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for
the respective fier,
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Pension Liablities, Pension Expense, Deferred Qutfiows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Ralated to Pensions -

At June 30, 2015, the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension fiability for the Non-State Employer
Member Group that is atiributable to the Authority was $38,551,552 or 0.1608624815%. At June 30, 2014,
the proportionate share of the Stale of New Jersey's the net pension liabifity for the Non-Gtate Employer
Member Group that is attributable to the Authority was $33,138,390 or 0.1669716257%.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Authorily recognized PERS expense of $1,550,352. At
December 31, 2015 the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Defarred
Qutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expended and actual experience 5 2610 3
Changes in assumptions 4,108,188
MNet difference between projected and aciual earnings
on pension pian investments 615,054
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 83,823 4,355,051
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date 611,241

$ 35,715,863 % 4,970,105

$611,241 shown as deferred outfiows of resources related to the PERS resulting from Authority contributions
subseqguent to the measurement date (June 30, 2015) will be recognized as a reduction of net pension Hability
in the year ended December 31, 2016, Other amounts reported as deferred outfiows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the PERS should have been recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended
December 31, Amount
2016 3 (26,922)
2017 (26,822)
2018 (26,822}
2018 (26,922)
2020 242 305
Total 3 134 6517
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Actuarial Assumptions- The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by
an actuariat vatuation as of July 1, 2014, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2015, This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement;

inflation 3.04%
Salary Increases (2012-2021) 2.15-4.40% Based on age
Thereafter 3115-5.40% Based on age
investrnent rate of return 7.90%

The actuarial assumnption used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actual experience
for the period July 1, 2008 to June 20, 2011,

Mortality Rates

Mortatity rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Table for Males or Females, as appropriate with
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disabled Morality Tables are used
to Value disabled retires,

Long-term Rate of Return

in accordance with State statute, the long-ferm expected rate of return on plan investrments (7.9% at June 30,
2015) was deterrnined by the State Treasurer, afier consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Invastrmants and Division of Pensions and Benefits and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of retumn
on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target agset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for gach major asset class
included in the pension plans' target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following

table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Raturn
Cash 5.00% 1.04%
.5, Treasuries 1.75% 1.64%
Inestment Grade Credit 10.00% 1.79%
Moraages 2. 10% 1.62%
High Yield Bongds 2.00% 4.03%
Inflatiot-Indexed Baonds 1.50% 3.25%
Broad US Equities 27.25% 8.52%
Developed Forelgn Equities 12.00% 6.68%
Emerging Market Equities 6. 40% 10.00%
Private Equity 9.25% 12.41%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Retum 12.00% 4.72%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.83%
Comrmaodities 1.00% 5.32%
Global Debt Ex U5, 3.50% 0. 40%
REIT 4. 25% 512%

100.00%
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13, Public Employse Retirement System (continued)

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the pension liabilities of PERS was 4.90% as of June 30,
2015, This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.8% as of June 30, 2015 based on the Band Buyer GO
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipat bonds with an average
rating of AAfAa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from ptan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions
from employers will be made based on the average of the last five years of contributions made in relation to
the last five years of recommended contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's net fiduciary
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members
through 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to the projected benefit payments
after that date in determining the total pension liabiiity.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability - the following presents the net pension iiability of PERS caloulated using
the discount rates as disclosed above as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were caleulated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage rate higher than the current rate:

AL 1% Decrease At current discount rate At 1% increase

PERS 547,914,862 538,551,562 $30,701 420

Flan Fiduciary Net Position ~ Detaited information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is availlable in
a separately issuad financial repon for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement Systern,

Additional Information Related to the Local Group:

Coilective deferred outflows of resources $3,578,755,666
Coliective deferred inflows of resources $993,410,455
Collective net pension lability $22 447 996,118
Autharity's partion 0.1608624915%

Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2015 is
§1,481,308 818,

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension through

the pension plan {active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2044 ({the beginning of the
measuremeant period ended June 30, 2015) is 5.72 years.
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Post-Emptoyment Healthcare Plan

The Authority's annual other posternployment benefits ("OPEB") costs for the Plan, which is currently funded
on a pay-as-you-go basis and is a non-contributary pian with all plan payments for plan benefits being funded
by the Authority, is calculated based on the apnual reguired contribution ("ARC™, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASE 45. The ARC represents a leve] of funding that, if paid
on an on-going basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and interest on the net OPEB obligation and
to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to excesd 30 vears. The
Authority's annual OPEB cost for the year ended Decamber 31, 2015, and the related information for the plan,
are as follows;

January 1, 2015 ~ Net OPEB Obligation {initial) (NOO) $8,882,115
Annual OPEB Costs (ACC) 1,868,034
Contribution from Authority {592 372}
December 31, 2015 — Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) 210267777
Fiacal Annuat Percentage of Net
Year OFER Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2015 $1.868,034 32.8% 512,077,119
2014 1,580,800 25.0% 8982115
Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial Value Accrued Unfunded Actuarial
of Assets L iahiiity Actuarial Liability as a
Valuation Projected Unit  Accrued  Funded  Covered Percentage of
Date OPEB COST Cradit Liability Ratio Payroll Coverad Payroll

{Doltars in Thousands)

HRmMs % - % 21,527 § 20,2094 0% § 6825 306%
1172013 § - 17,759 17,738 0% 3 7.1B2 247%

in July 2012, the Authority's heaithcare and post-employment liabilities were assumead under the State's
medical plan. As a result, the Authority was no longer required to record & liability for its net ebligation under
its former OFPES plan and, as such, was removed from its financiat statements. This action did not affect the
former Meadowlands Commission's OPEB plan and, as such, due to the merger of the two authorities, the
NJISEA assurmed the Meadowlands Commission's OFEB obligation to former Commission Employees,

Pollution Remediation Costs

Effective 2008, pollulion remediation costs were recognized as a Hability on the Statements of Financial
Position and an operaling expense provision was made in the Siatements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position in accordance with GASE Statement No. 48, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or
Follution Remediation Obligations. The remediation involves current and future activities related to testing,
recovery, and cleanup of soil, subsurface water and ground level streams at various Authority sites,
Contaminated sites include Meadowlands-Xanadu, the new stadium area, and the Meadowlands and
Monmouth race tracks. The Authority estimates the cost to be $6,121,000, The total payments made since
2007 were $2,846,000, and charged to the Statermnents of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pasition
in each respective year, Estimated fulure expense for environmental remediation is $3,275,000, and is
reflacted on the Statement of Financial Position. Estimated recovery relatad from remediation reduces the
measurement of this liability, There is no expected remadiation recovery on the above sites,
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Pollution Remediation Cosis (continued)

Methods and assumptions used included historical data and engineering estimates. The pollution remediation
liability is an estimate and is subject to changes resulting from price increases or reductions, technology, or
changes in applicable laws and regulations,

Clasure and Post Closure Requirements

The Authority has set aside funds for closure and post-closure for s landfills, In the event the monies in the
statutory accounts are not sufficient, the State of New Jersey will address any future liabilities for closure and
post-clogure for its landfills, The assumption of this liability by the State occurred in calendar year 2003, when
the Authority transferred $50 million from its closure and post-closure accounts to the State's General Fund to
meet its statutory obligations under the New Jersey State 2003-2004 budget.

Remaediation of Keegan Landfill

On June 14, 2005, the NJMC entered into a lease agreament with the Town of Kearny for the remediation of
Keegan Landfill through future reopening of the facility for construction and demclition waste. It is expected
that sufficient revenues will be generated through the tipping fees at Keegan Landfill to reimburse the Authority
for ali costs associated with this lease. Al the completion of operations and closure of the Keegan Landfill, the
NJMC will assist the Town of Kearny with the construction of recreational facilities at the site. The Authority
has made payments to the Town of Kearny totaling $9,750,151 since the agreement's inception.

Meadowlands Area Grants for Natural and Economic Transformation (MAGNET)

In calendar year 2005, the NJMC launched the MAGNET Program. The intention of the MAGNET is to
enhance the NJMGC's existing Municipal Aid Program (MAP), by ensuring that monies are set aside for tax
relief incentives for District municipalities. A detaifed budget outlining the amounts appropriated for MAP,
environmental, economic development and capital improvements initiatives is currently in place. As of
December 31, 2015, the balance in the MAGNET fund was 32,377,099, of which $1,466 487 was committed.

nterfund Balances and Activity

Balances due to/from other funds at December 31, 2015 consist of the following:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Eund Other Funds
5 117,913 Ganeral Fund $ 1,602,105
1,679,487 Solid Waste
86,178 Environmentat Center 47.510
Other govermental Funds 227 4490
2,113 MAGNET
Mitigation Trust 108,133
475 Third Party Escrows
63 Transportation Planning District
b 1,886,236 Total $ 1886236
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
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Notes to Financial Siatements
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20. Risk Management

21.

Property and Liability insurance

The Authority maintaing commercial insurance covarage for property, liability and surety bonds that covers the
nsks of loss related to torts; theft of, damages fo, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to
employees; and natural disasters,

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been
any settlemants in excess of insurance coverage.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The Authority has slected to fund its New Jersay Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit
Reimburgement Method.” Under this plan, the Authority is required lo reimburse the New Jersey
Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State.
The Authority is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. There were no reimbursements which were
required to be paid to the State for the current year,

Commitments and Contingencies

The Authorily is exposed o risks of losses related to injuries to employees. The Authority has established a
risk management program fo account for and finance its uninsured tisks of loss related to workmen's
compensation., Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that & loss has occurred
and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Claims are based on actuarial vaiuation,

Workmen's compensation claims liabitity, claims incurred and claims paid are provided below,

Reconciliation of Workmen's Compensation Claims Liability

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014

Claims - January 1 $  11,364674 $ 11,047,413
{Decrease)/Increasa in provision 469,212 1,853,737
Claims paid (1,163,078) (1,536,476)
Claims - December 31 10,670,808 11,364,674
Less: current portion 1,183,078 1,536,478
Long term liability $ 9,507,730 $ 5,828,198

fuasusns s A e T
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

GCommitments and Contingencies {continued)

On June 30, 2005, the Authority entered into a ground lease and related project agreements for development
of the Xanadu Project site, an approximately 5.0 million square rmixed-use project on approximately 104 acras
at the Meadowlands Sports Complex. Through March 2008, the Authority received pre-payments of ground
rent in the amount of $160,000,000. In 2005, the Authority used $26 800,000 of the prepaid ground rent {o
purchase the wetland mitigation bank rights on the Empire Tragt. The Authority also used $37,190,000 to
defease tax-exarmnpt bonds aftributable to the Meadowlands Xanadu Project site. Expenses associated with
the project that were previously deferred wera expensed in 2005. For GAAP purposes revenue will be
realized by amorizing the up frant payment over 18 years. American Dream’s developer, Ameream, LLC, has
announced that the complex will be anchored by department stores Saks Fifth Avenue and Lord & Taylor, The
complex's many scheduled features include indoor amusement and water parks, a8 movie theater complex, an
observation wheel, an indoor ski and snowboarding slope, and numercus restaurants. The developer has
estimated a Fall 2018 opening.

Al year-end approximately 5487 000 in current assets and labilites was related o funds received from the
State to administer the Aguarium Project. The activity in the fund created for this purpose has no effect on the
Authority's revenues or expenses.

On June 14, 2004, the Authority entered into a Participation agreement o license and operate an account
wagering system In New Jersey pursuant to the Off-Track and Account Wagering Act (P.L. 203, ¢. 189) and
the regulations promulgated by the New Jersey Racing Commission. Under the agreement the Authorily
began operating &n on-ling account wagering system and has contributed 70% of start-up costs for the
project, appeinted an Operating Board and conducts and accounts for all day-to-day operations in return for
70% of available net project revenues or losses as defined by the agreement.

The Autharity's 70% financial inferest was transferred to the New Meadowlands Racetrack, (35:%) and the
New Jersey Thoroughbred Morsemen's Association, (35%) as part of 2 long term lease agreerment to assyme
the operating rights of the racetracks and off-track wagering sites,

On October 21, 2008, the Authority undertook a project consisting of construction of a new storm water basin
and to purchase equipment for the project in order to alleviate storm water runoff at Monmouth Park
Racetrack. The totat cost for the equipment and the project is astimated at $26,600,000, which includes
capitalized interest, debt service and administrative expenses, and will be financed through loans from the
Mew Jersey Environmental infrastructure Trust and the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection,
The Borough of Oceanport appiied for the project loan (not to exceed $23,500,000), and the Authority will
apply for the equipment loan (not to exceed $850,000) with the above financing autharities. The Authority wilt
pay the Borough a special assessment that is substantially similar 10 the Borough's loan repayment schedule,
and will manage the project at its own cost, The project was completed in 2012 and repayment on the ioans
hegan in 2010 and ends in 2028

Concentration of Risk

The State of New Jersey appropriated and remitted to the Auihority $26 million in state aid, This amount s
used to fund the General Fund operations. This siate aid offsets approximately 82% of the Authority's 2015
operating loss.
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(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey}

Notes to Financial Statements
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23. Subsequent Events

In August and September 2016, the NJSEA authorized the issuance of Limited Obligation Grant Revenue
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 (the "ERGG Bonds"), in order to provide
financing for & portion of the costs of developing the American Dream Project. The ERGG Bonds are spacial
imited revenue obligations of the Authority payable from grants received by the Authority pursuant to a State
Economic Redevelopment and Growth Incentive Grant Agreement awarded to the developer of the American
Dream Project. The ERGG Bonds have not yet been issued,

In August and September 2016, the NJSEA authorized the issusnce of Limited Obligation PILOT Revenue
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $800,000,000 (the "PILOT Bonds"), in order {o provide
financing for a portion of the cosis of developing the American Dream Project. The PILOT Bonds are special
iimited revenue obligations of the Authority payable from PILOTs received by the Authority pursuant o a
Financial Agreement between the developer of the American Dream Project, the Borough of East Rutherford
and the Authority. The PILOT Bonds have not yet been issued.

NJEEA's lease with the Town of Kearny for the Keegan Landfill property expired in June 2016, Negotiations
hetween the parties for an extension of the lpase to date have failed. NJSEA filed an action to condemn the
Keegan Landfili property. The Superior Court of New Jersey affirmed the NJSEA's right to condamn the
iandfill after a challenge was made by the Town of Kearny. The Town has subsequently appealed the court's
decision. The appeal remains ongoing. Simullansously, proceedings to determine the valuation of the landfill
refative to the condemnation remain ongoing. The NJSEA's expert appraisal set a value of $1.8 million for the
property. Condemnation commissionars appointed by the court valued the property at $7.8 million in & non-
binding process, which was appealed by the NJSEA. A trial de novo is anticipated to be held in 2017 on this
subject. As these legal matters proceed, operations at the landfill continue. The NJSEA received a
Temporary Cerificate of Authority to Operate (TCAD) for the landfill, which would permit operations up to 100
ft. The Town of Kearny has filed a request for an adjudicatory hearing on the TCAQ,
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NEW JERSEY 5FORTS AND EXPUSITION AUTHORITY
(8 Compenant Lnit of the Stale of New Jersey)

Statement of Ravenves, Expandituras, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Budgetary Bz 1)
Decermber 31, 2015

Buage!
Lriganat Transtars/ Final
Bugget Adpsiments Budga! Artupl Vananoce
Gperadng Revenues:
NMSCO Ground Ledee £ 6,866,000 ) . % 8,886 000 5 6974809 b1 104,899
NMR Shared Sarvicos 5,350,000 . 5,350,000 5082,382 {267,638)
(3)  Aroni Revesue 4,673 000 - 4,673,000 4,491,578 (1B1,422)
Murnowsh Park, Reimbursabies A0 - 2,408 0on 2384 342 [17,658)
Enteraimmant Facilitias . - - - & BAB RES Baba hRa
(2)  Convantion Canter - " . 2,581,343 2 583,343
(2)  Tourlsm Tax Revenua - - - 4,052,238 4,052,238
Mise. Other 204000 - 3.034 Uoo 165456 096 17 045
Total « East Rutherford 5 FRALM O3 - §OSUZR000 % IBIDATAE 5 TEVIBT4E
L.ensi Revenuas & LBZ4tDR B . & 1824408 % 1,568,148  § {255,863}
{and Use Foe Incoma 500,000 . 1.500.000 i Bag, 321 46,321
Querhgad Reimbyrsampnt 4,598, 144 - 4.5498. 784 5,687 Y06 {10.958)
Mise Otber 1133628 - 1,143,635 1450 409 326374
Total Dperating Revenue » Lyndhorst L TARGERT -1 - 3986527 3 92118y - 104 834
Sollg Waste Revanut 3 24,140,535 3 v 2 24,144 535 k] 25,025 570 5 881,035
Totit Revenusd 5 RAEAMIDEZ 5 o Wk GuEveOGE 4 Teannart 4§ 15 Te4.418
Expendiuroe:
SalariesfFringe 3 13,300.000 £ - 3 13,300,000 ] 12,697,883 3 602,017
(3)  Arena Event Exponsas 2461000 - 2,561,000 2,609,591 {128,501}
Luktios 5135 500 - £,929, 000 3 568,407 1,540 563
Menw Jorsey Racing Commissian LTATT000 - 2471, 050 2,480,371 {19,371)
Fratessional Servicey 2000 800 - 2, {00,000 2,081 16T [EERLYS
Panzion 1,800 000 . 1RG0 1,537,901 G2 059
YWarkers Compensalicn 1,500 800 . 1504 000 . 1,500,000
Raepairsfaintanancs - Building/Othor 1,668,000 B 1,668,000 1,794,472 {126,473}
tonvantion Canter - - - 6,038,434 {6,038, 434)
Misc. Gilhar 2.77E 000 - 2 776.000 13 434,253 [3.555‘253»’]“
Total - East Rutherford § JA0h0ln % - 5 306000 F A4.388 578 8 {41184 479)
Salarips/Fringn % 5287427 5 - % 5367427 L 5,114,381 5 263,048
Srrvicos 1.4R0 BOY - 1480, 000 4, 458, 198 71 22
Capitalfninienance Al 600 . 600, 000 46777 REIAI
RepaireiMalnlenance 675,800 . B75 60G 39,113 6487
Hamapo Fartnersis 500,000 . 500,000 500,000 .
Mgt Otngr e drason . e 78,500 BRELE . (655.516)
Total « Lyndhursi 5 4y186.La7 5 - EERECEE - 9.24B3B5 & (otahg)
Rl Naste Qperating Expenses 5 24,144 535 § 244836 % 247R6004 % LACiRerH)]
Yotal Expondituves % BS,506,062 3 4 3 68,508 052 % 76,333,428 ¥ (11677 366)
Total Operating Gan or Loss il us0000) e k0880 000) 184285y 4,837 049
Othar revenues and expendijures:
State Abgropsiblitsas 3 76000 00D OAG00GO00 & IBLO00G0 % -
Fayiant ¥ Lieu of Taxes & CAFD (11,705,389} {11,705 284 {11,650.068: A1
Total non-oparating revenues énd expenses 14,204 631 ' 14,204 831 14,440 942 236,311
Excass {dalich) of revanues aved expanditures 8 3324631 3 - & 3324631 b3 5,487,681 5 5,173,360
Ameunts repert for gevernmants activities i the staiement of revedues, exponditures and changes in fund baisnce sre Gilbrent Because:
Drepraciation pipanso {1.517 485}
Pest emplaymant hanlihcare beretits. aihar than pensior cbligsiinn {1,124, 247
Capital authiys 3677t
Exeess {deficit) of revanues over eapandiionms 6274008
Fund batance, beginning of year » 195,501,124
Fund batanes, entl of yest Budgetacy basis % S0 TET 6D

1) NJSEA, pehcy Jg 1o prepare a enlity-wide budiel o it oparslions and dets not prepare budgety by major funds.
() Witdweood Convention Center Activitias are ot 8 budnetad by NJSEA. Budgets Tor Wildwood Gonventian Gantite
are prapaced by the Grealar Wildwoods Tounsm improvement & Devetapmenl Authortly (GWTIDA)

(3) Bon Fogingte ) - NJSEA Enterprise Fund Revanuss and Espenses.,

Sed Niner 1g Financial Siataments
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New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Required Supplementary [nformation - Schedule of the
Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pensian Liability
New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System {(PERS)
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2018 2014

Authority's proportion of the net

pension llability (asset) 0.1608625% 0.1669715%
Authority's proportionate share of the

net pension Hability (asset) ¥ 38,5561 652 $ 33,138,370
Authority's covered-emplayee payroll ¥ 7,863,473 5 12,049 996
Authority's proportionate share of the T

net pension lability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 484, 10% 275.01%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension fiability - local group 47.93% 48.72%

{1} Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Staternent No. B8, Accaunting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

See Notes 0 Financial Statements
&1



New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Contributions
New Jersey Public Emplovees' Retirement Systermn (FERS)
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2015 2014

Cantractually required contribution 3 1,458,125 5 1,527,382
Contributions in relation ta the

contractually required contribution (1,459,128) (1,627 382)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - 3 -
Authority's covered-employee payroll b 7963473 $ 12049996
Contributions as a percentage of

coveraed-employee payroll 18.32% 12.68%

{1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Finaneial Reporting for Pensions.

MNotes to Required Supplementary Information

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Benefit Changes
There were none.
Changes of Assumplion

The inflation and discount rates used o rmeasure the total pension liability were as follows:

Measurament Date Discount Rate Inflation Rate
June 30, 2015 4.90% 3.04%
June 30, 2014 8.39% 3.01%

Sea Notes to Financial Statements
52



3 PKF

" OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Report on internai Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority ("the
Authority™), as of and for the year then ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2017. Our report qualifies our opinion on the
business-type activities and the NJSEA Enterprise Fund because the Authority did not provide a
fair value measurement regarding the closure of the 1Z0OD Center and therefore, the amount of
any impairment loss cannot be determined.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considerad the Authority's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Autherity's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet imporiant
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of infernal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PKE O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
283 Eigonhower Parkway, Suite 270, Livingston, NJ 07039 ! Tel: 973.535,2880 | Fax: 973.535.5893 | www.pkfod.com

PKF Q'Connpr Davies, LLP is @ member firm of the PKF Intermational Limited natwork of iegally independent frms and does nat rocept any
responsibility or liabilty for the actions of inactions an the part of any other individual mambar fitrn or firms.



Board of Commissioner
New Jersey Sporis and Exposition Authority
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statemert amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internat control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govermnment Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's
internal control and compliance, Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
pUrpose.

PUE O Gramp, Davnies, LLP

March 31, 2017



ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and Report on internal Control over Compliance

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority's (the "Authority”) compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority's major Federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2015, The Authority's major federai programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs,

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the ferms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to iis federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits conlained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Tile 2 U5 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniforrn Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit 1o obfain reasonable assurance about whether noncoempliance with the types
of compliance reguirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes exarmining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered nacessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Authority’s compliance.

PRF O CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
293 Eisenhower Parkway, Sulte 270, Livingston, NS 07039 | Tel: 973.535.2880 | Fax: $73.535.5803 ¢ www. pifod.com

PKF Q'Connor Davias, LLP is g member firm of tie PKF Internationa? Limited notwork of iegaily independernt firme and dots Aot actepl any
responaibitity or llability for the actions or inaetions on the part of any other ingividypat member frm or firms.



Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Sports and Exposition Authority
Page 2

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requiremnents referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of ils major
federal programs for the year ended Decernber 31, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our sudit of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal controd
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internatl control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance doss not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, fo prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in interrial
confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficlency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a Federal program that is less severe than a rmaterial weakness in
internal control aver compliance, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

PE O Cornmpr Mw LLP

March 31, 2017
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS



NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures
of
Federal Awards
December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 General

The accompanying schedules present the activity of the federal awards of the New Jersey Sports
and Exposition Authority. The Authority is defined in Note 1 to the Authority's financial statements.
All federal financial assistance received from federal agencies, as well as federal awards
passed through other government agencies, is included on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards.

NOTE 2 Retationship to Financial Statements

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the
Authority's financial statements.

NOTE 3 Indirect Cost Rate

The Authority has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed
under Uniform Guidance.
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NEW JERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Seaction | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on financial statements Qualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

1} Material weakness(es) identified Yes )8 No
2} Significant deficiency(ies) that are not
considered to be material weakness{es)? Yes X None

Noncompliance material to the financial
statements noted? Yes A No

Faderal Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:

1} Material weakness{es) identified Yes A No

2} Significant deficiency(ies} that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X MNo

Type of auditor's report used on comphance
for major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required {o be
reported in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.933 National Infrastructure investments — TIGER Discration Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs $750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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NEWJERSEY SPORTS AND EXPOSITION AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2015
Section 2 - Financial Statements Findings
NONE
Section 3 — Major Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE

Section 4 — Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
NONE
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